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(This agenda is subject to changes, additions or deletions at the discretion of the City Council) 
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Debra Filla Jim Rawlings Chuck Sipple Julie Cain 
Andrew Osman Mary Larson Lisa Harrison James Azeltine 

2 3 

9 10 

16 17 

23 24 

30 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. CITY CLERK STATEMENT

To reduce the likelihood of the spread of COVID-19 and to comply with social distancing
recommendations, this meeting of the Leawood Governing Body is being conducted remotely
using the Zoom media format and some of the members of the Governing Body are appearing
remotely. The meeting is being livestreamed on [Y ouTube] and the public can access the
livestream by going to www.leawood.org/.

Public comments on non-agenda items will not be accepted during this meeting. Public comment 
on agenda items not requiring a public hearing may not be accepted. .As always, public comment 
on any agenda item can be submitted in advance. Written public comments received at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting have been distributed to members of the Governing Body prior to the 
meeting. Public comments should be directed to LeawoodPublicCommentGB@leawood.org. 

4. PROCLAMATIONS

5. PRESENTATIONS/RECOGNITIONS

6. SPECIAL BUSINESS

Diaper Need .Awareness Week 
September 21st - 27th, 2020 

Renee Gurney, Leawood Ivfunicipal 
Court Judge, retiring after 23 years of 
service 

If you require any accommodation (i.e. qualified interpreter, hearing assistance, etc.) in order to attend this meeting, please notify this office at 913.339.6700 or Email 
at CityClerk@Leawood.org no later than 96 hours prior to the scheduled commencement of the meeting. 

K:\Clerks\Agenda\2020 Agendas\A08-l 7-2020.docx 
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City of Leawood Governing Body Staff Report 

MEETING DATE:    August 17, 2020 
REPORT WRITTEN:  July 29, 2020 

EURONET WORLDWIDE – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A FINAL PLAN FOR A SIGN PLAN- 
Located south of 114th Street and west of Tomahawk Creek Parkway - Case 58-20 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:   
The Planning Commission recommends approval unanimously (8-0) of Case 58-20 Euronet Worldwide – 
request for approval of a Final Plan for a Sign Plan, with the stipulations listed below: 

1. The project is limited to the addition of a line of text to the existing southern monument sign, and a wall
sign on the southwest corner of the existing building, facing south.

2. A sign permit from the Planning Department shall be obtained prior to erection of any signs.
3. Development rights under this approval shall vest in accordance with K.S.A. 12-764.
4. In addition to the stipulations listed in this report, the developer/property owner agrees to abide by all

ordinances of the City of Leawood including the Leawood Development Ordinance, unless a deviation
has been granted, and to execute a statement acknowledging in writing that they agree to stipulations
one through four.

APPLICANT: 

 The applicant is Celina Gerling with Luminous Neon Inc.

 The property is owned by Academy 1740, Inc.

REQUEST: 

 The applicant is requesting approval of a Final Plan for a sign plan to include a wall sign and updated
lettering on an existing monument sign.

ZONING: 

 The property is currently zoned SD-O (Planned Office).

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

 The Comprehensive Plan designates this property as Office.
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LOCATION: 

 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING:   

 North To the north of the property is an office building within the Tomahawk Creek Office 
Park, zoned SD-O (Planned Office). 

 South To the south of the property, across Tomahawk Creek Parkway, is Tomahawk 
Creek, zoned REC (Planned Recreation). 

 East To the east of the property, across Tomahawk Creek Parkway, is a parking area for 
Tomahawk Creek, zoned REC. 

 West To the west of the property is the Pinnacle Office Building development, zoned SD-
O 

 
SITE PLAN: 

 The applicant is proposing a wall sign on the southwest corner of the existing building, facing south.  

 In addition to a wall sign, the applicant is proposing to add “Euronet WORLDWIDE” as an additional 
line of text to the existing monument sign, located at the southern entrance into the site. 

 
ELEVATIONS:   
Monument Sign 

 The existing monument is 6’ 3 ½” inches in length and 3’ 1” in height and constructed of brick with a 
concrete cap for the top of the monument. 

 The face of the sign is constructed of 3/8” brass letters with light oxidized brushed horizontal finish, to 
match the existing letters on the monument sign. 

 The monument sign will state “11400 TOMAHAWK” on the first line, “CREEK PARKWAY” on the 
second line, and “Euronet WORLDWIDE” on the new third line. 

 The proposed lettering mounted for the monument sign is in compliance with the Leawood 
Development Ordinance. 

 A sign permit from the Planning Department shall be obtained prior to erection of the wall sign. 
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Wall Sign 

 The letters on the sign are to be constructed of fabricated aluminum, painted brushed aluminum. 

 The text of the sign will read “Euronet WORLDWIDE”  

 The proposed wall sign lettering is in compliance with the Leawood Development Ordinance. 

 A sign permit from the Planning Department shall be obtained prior to erection of the wall sign. 
 
LIGHTING: 

 The monument sign has existing exterior ground mounted lighting that is not proposed to be changed 
with this application. 

 The wall sign will be internally illuminated-reverse channel letters, which will create a halo lit sign, using 
white LED’s. 

 
LANDSCAPING: 

 No additional landscaping is proposed with this application. 













DATE: 7/16/20
DESIGN NO: SP-34647ELANDLORDr2
ARTIST: JH

SPECIFICATIONS: 
• PRODUCE AND INSTALL (1) SET OF INTERNALLY-ILLUMINATED REVERSE CHANNEL LETTERS
• “EURONET WORLDWIDE” - FABRICATED ALUMINUM LETTERS PAINTED BRUSHED ALUMINUM AND HALO LIT WHITE LEDS
• INSTALLS STUD MOUNTED 1 1/2” OFF OF FASCIA
• NOTE: FONT MODIFIED FOR PRODUCTION

CUSTOMER: EURONET WORLDWIDE
NAME: JAY BROOKS
LOCATION: 11400 TOMAHAWK CREEK PKWY
 LEAWOOD, KS 66211

APPROVED: DATE:

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'

© 2020 LUMINOUS NEON, INC. This design is the property of LUMINOUS NEON, INC. Rights are transferred to the customer upon completion of order. This design is not to be used in whole or in part without the written permission of the company. The PANTONE (PMS) and/or 
vinyl colors shown on printed document are a four-color process simulation and may not match PANTONE and vinyl identified spot color standards. Use a PANTONE Color Reference Manual or vinyl swatch book for accurate display of colors. 

All noted dimensions are approximate and may be modified slightly during manufacturing to allow proper component usage.

2533 SQ FT OF TENANT AREA
5% ALLOWANCE 126.6 SQ FT
PROPOSED  55.17 SQ FT  

PROPOSED APPROXIMATING NIGHT VIEW

SECTION VIEW SCALE : NTS

INDIVIDUALLY MOUNTED REVERSE CHANNEL LETTER
LED ILLUMINATION & REMOTE POWER SUPPLY
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DATE: 7/16/20
DESIGN NO: SP-34647LANDLORDr2
ARTIST: JH

SPECIFICATIONS: 
• FURNISH AND INSTALL (2) SETS OF FLAT CUT OUT LETTERS FOR
 EXISTING DOUBLE-FACED BRICK ENTRY MONUMENT
• “EURONET WORLDWIDE” - 3/8” THICK BRASS LETTERS WITH LIGHT
 OXIDIZED BRUSHED HORIZONTAL FINISH TO MATCH EXISTING
• STUD MOUNTED FLUSH

CUSTOMER: EURONET WORLDWIDE
NAME: JAY BROOKS
LOCATION: 11400 TOMAHAWK CREEK PKWY
 LEAWOOD, KS 66211

APPROVED: DATE:

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'

© 2020 LUMINOUS NEON, INC. This design is the property of LUMINOUS NEON, INC. Rights are transferred to the customer upon completion of order. This design is not to be used in whole or in part without the written permission of the company. The PANTONE (PMS) and/or 
vinyl colors shown on printed document are a four-color process simulation and may not match PANTONE and vinyl identified spot color standards. Use a PANTONE Color Reference Manual or vinyl swatch book for accurate display of colors. 

All noted dimensions are approximate and may be modified slightly during manufacturing to allow proper component usage.

PROPOSED

SECTION VIEW SCALE : NTS

NON-ILLUMINATED FLAT CUT OUT LETTER
FLUSH MOUNT

1. BRASS LETTER FACE AND RETURN
2. STAND OFF SPACER
3. 1/4” STUDS WELDED TO LETTER BACK
4. DRILL HOLE FILLED WITH SILICONE
5. BRICK MONUMENT
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City of Leawood Governing Body Staff Report 

MEETING DATE:    August 17, 2020 
REPORT WRITTEN: August 3, 2020 

IRA STEIN PROPERTY – CELL TOWER – T-MOBILE ANTENNAS AND ASSOCIATED EQUIPMENT – 
REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF AN ELIGIBLE FACILITIES REQUEST FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF 
ANTENNAS AND THE REPLACEMENT AND ADDITION OF ASSOCIATED EQUIPMENT – Located 
north of 135th Street and east of Nall Avenue – Case 76-20 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff reviewed the application of Case 76-20 – T-Mobile Antennas and Associated Equipment, and has 
determined that it meets the requirements for 6409(a) of the Middle Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act 
of 2012.  Staff recommends the Governing Body approve Case 76-20, Ira Stein Property – T-Mobile 
Antennas and Associated Equipment, with the following stipulations: 
1. The application is limited the modifications of an existing T-Mobile Module on the ground level, the

replacement of an existing FSMF to an existing H-Frame on the ground level, a total of  9 antennas to
be replaced with 6 new antennas, 10 remote radio heads to be replaced with 6 remote radio heads,
and the removal of 6 TMA’s.

2. The equipment shall comply with and be maintained in accordance with all related federal guidelines
and the requirements of Section 16-4-12.3(F)(2) of the Leawood Development Ordinance pertaining to
the required concealment elements.

3. In addition to the stipulations listed in this report, the developer / property owner agrees to abide by all
City ordinances, and to execute a statement acknowledging in writing that they agree to stipulations
one through three.

APPLICANT: 

 The applicant is Michael Gasser as agent for AT&T

 The property is owned by Stein Towers, L.C.

REQUEST: 

 The applicant is proposing additions and modifications to T-Mobile equipment at the ground level and
the 155’ centerline.

ZONING: 

 The property is currently zoned AG (Agricultural).

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

 The Comprehensive Plan designates this property as Mixed Use.

SURROUNDING ZONING:  

 North,East, 
South and West 

The property is within the Parkway Plaza Mixed Use development. The property is 
surrounded on all sides by properties within the development zoned MXD (Mixed Use). 
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LOCATION: 
 

  
 
EXISTING CONDITIONS: 

 The current height of the tower is 170’ with a 7’ lightning arrestor at the top.  A Special Use Permit for 
the tower was renewed on June 20, 2016 for a term of twenty years. 

 The facility is enclosed by an existing 8’ wall constructed of masonry/stucco.  The equipment compound 
is surrounded by a combination of deciduous and evergreen trees along with bushes to provide 
screening.  The tower owner shall be required to maintain the landscaping.   

 
PROPOSED CHANGES: 

 The applicant is proposing modifications to T-Mobile equipment at the ground level and at the 155’ 
centerline of the existing pole:    

Modifications on the ground floor include: 

 The relocation of an existing FSMF from an existing module chair to an existing Utility H-Frame. 

 The addition of 16 modules on an existing module chair. 
 
Modifications to the 155’ centerline include:  

 The replacement of 9 antennas with 6 new antennas. The antennas will have dimensions of 35.43” 
in height, 22.83” in width, and 8.26” in depth. 

 The replacement of 10 remote radio heads with 6 new remote radio heads. The remote radio heads 
will have dimensions of 27.6” in height, 13.4” in width, and 5.6” in depth. 

 The removal of 6 TMA’s (Tower Mounted Amplifiers). 
 
SECTION 6409(A) ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS: 

 Staff has reviewed the application and determined that it complies with Section 6409(a) of the Middle 
Class Tax Relief and Job Creation Act of 2012. The modifications proposed do not constitute a 
substantial change under the act.   
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 The application meets the requirements of equipment co-location on a support structure as it is not 
increasing the height of the tower, does not involve any more equipment cabinets, and does not entail 
any excavation of the current site.   

 The applicant’s appurtenances shall continue to be mounted uniformly to create a symmetrical 
appearance, which complies with concealment efforts outlined in Section 16-4-12.3(F)(2) of the 
Leawood Development Ordinance. The existing antennae are meeting necessary requirements for the 
tower to be considered a legal structure, such as: 
o Mounting the antennae in order to minimize the visual impact to the greatest extent practicable, 

and shall not extend more than 7’ from the face of the tower; 
o antennae are painted to match the color of the tower; 
o cabling to the antennae is internalized within the tower; and, 
o the property is landscaped.   
The changes on the ground level of the pole and removal and replacement of T-Mobile antennas and 
ancillary equipment at the 155’ centerline will be in conformance with the concealment requirements 
of the Leawood Development Ordinance.  
 



STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS:
DATED:

C - COMMERCIAL

CROWN CASTLE USA INC.
2000 CORPORATE DRIVE
CANONSBURG, PA 15317

IIB

BY OTHERS

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS:

MOUNT ANALYSIS:
DATED:

BY OTHERS

CALL MISSOURI ONE CALL

(800) DIG-RITE
CALL 3 WORKING DAYS

BEFORE YOU DIG!

T-MOBILE
12920 SE 38TH STREET
BELLEVUE, WA 98006

THE PURPOSE OF THIS PROJECT IS TO ENHANCE
BROADBAND CONNECTIVITY AND CAPACITY TO THE
EXISTING ELIGIBLE WIRELESS FACILITY.

TOWER SCOPE OF WORK:
· REMOVE (9) ANTENNAS
· REMOVE (10) RRHs
· REMOVE (6) TMAs
· INSTALL (6) ANTENNAS
· INSTALL (6) RRHs
· INSTALL (1) HYBRID CABLE 1.8"

GROUND SCOPE OF WORK:
· RELOCATED (1) FSMF TO (E) H-FRAME MOUNT
· REMOVE (2) FSMF
· REMOVE (3) FBBC
· REMOVE (1) ESMB
· INSTALL (2) AMIAs
· INSTALL (3) ABIAs
· INSTALL (1) ASIA
· INSTALL (2) ASIK
· INSTALL (3) ABIC
· INSTALL (4) ABILs
· INSTALL (1) ASIB
· INSTALL (6) SFC4 DIPLEXERS
· INSTALL (1) COVP

IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY PERSON,
UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING UNDER THE DIRECTION

OF A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER,
TO ALTER THIS DOCUMENT.

4T-1
REVISION:SHEET NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR:

DRWNREV DESCRIPTION DES./QADATE

0 03/14/2019 SK LQNPRELIMINARY

9045 RIVER ROAD, SUITE 425
INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46240

T-MOBILE SITE NUMBER:
A5D0081A

BU #: 877796
IRA STEIN PROPERTY

5290 W. 135th STREET
LEAWOOD, KS 66209

EXISTING 170'-0" MONOPOLE

312 ELM STREET, 10TH FLOOR
CINCINNATI, OH 45202

LE

C

AF

OMMUNICATIONS

1 03/28/2019 LS LQNCONSTRUCTION

2 05/30/2019 MA LQNREVISED CDs

3 06/18/2019 MA LQNREVISED CDs

4 07/10/2020 LJS LQNCD REVISION

1000 CALLE CORDILLERA,
SAN CLEMENTE, CA 92673

WWW.LEAFCOMM.COM
 (949) 388-0192

LOCATION MAP

NO SCALE

SITE INFORMATION

CARRIER/APPLICANT:

SHEET #

DRAWING INDEX

SHEET DESCRIPTION

T-MOBILE SITE NUMBER:
T-MOBILE SITE NAME:
T-MOBILE PROJECT:

BUSINESS UNIT #:
SITE ADDRESS:
COUNTY:
SITE TYPE:
TOWER HEIGHT:

A5D0081A
135TH & NALL
CAPACITY-AWS3

877796

JOHNSON
MONOPOLE
170'-0"

5290 W. 135TH STREET
LEAWOOD, KS 66209

 TBD
TBD

ELECTRIC PROVIDER:

TBD
TBD

TELCO PROVIDER:

GROUND ELEVATION:

38° 53' 8.80"

-94° 38' 47.40"

FACILITY IS UNMANNED AND NOT FOR
HUMAN HABITATION

OCCUPANCY CLASSIFICATION:

A.D.A. COMPLIANCE:

MAP/PARCEL #:

CITY OF LEAWOODJURISDICTION:

HF251328-2007

IRA STEIN PROPERTY

JOHNSON

AREA OF CONSTRUCTION: EXISTING

NAD83

MXD (MIXED USE DISTRICT)

PROPERTY OWNER:

TOWER OWNER:

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION:

972'

5290 W. 135th STREET
LEAWOOD, KS 66209

STEIN TOWERS, L.C.
4801 W 133RD ST # 201
LEAWOOD, KS 66209

CROWN CASTLE USA INC.
SITE NAME:

RFDS REVISION:
DATED:

4
5/27/2020 6:25 PM

ORDER ID:
REVISION:

471078
0

LAT/LONG TYPE:

LONGITUDE:

LATITUDE:

CURRENT ZONING:

COUNTY:

SITE ADDRESS:

PROJECT TEAM

A&E FIRM:

CROWN CASTLE
USA INC. DISTRICT
CONTACTS:

LEAF COMMUNICATIONS
944 CALLE AMANECER, SUITE E
SAN CLEMENTE, CA 92673
CONTACT: DAN LEAF
PHONE: (949) 485-8793

TITLE SHEETT-1

SITE PLANC-1.1

C-1.2

C-2

C-3

C-4

EXISTING & FINAL EQUIPMENT PLANS

EQUIPMENT DETAILS & COAX COLOR CODING

FINAL ELEVATION & ANTENNA PLANS

G-1 TYPICAL FINAL GROUNDING SCHEMATIC

GENERAL NOTEST-2

EQUIPMENT SPECS

G-2 GROUNDING DETAILS

KIMBERLY FERGUSON - PROJECT MANAGER
(314) 513-0137

JOHN SCHMITZ - CONSTRUCTION MANAGER
(913) 687-9339

1 CITY PLACE DRIVE, SUITE 490
ST. LOUIS, MO 63141

NOTE:
PRIOR TO ACCESSING/ENTERING THE SITE YOU MUST CONTACT THE CROWN NOC AT (800) 788-7011 & CROWN CONSTRUCTION MANAGER.

APPLICABLE CODS/REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED AND MATERIALS INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT EDITIONS OF THE FOLLOWING CODES AS ADOPTED BY
THE LOCAL GOVERNING AUTHORITIES. NOTHING IN THESE PLANS IS TO BE CONSTRUED TO PERMIT WORK NOT CONFORMING TO THESE CODES:

ALL DRAWINGS CONTAINED HEREIN ARE FORMATTED FOR
FULL SIZE. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL PLANS AND

EXISTING DIMENSIONS AND CONDITIONS ON THE JOB SITE
AND SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER IN

WRITING OF ANY DISCREPANCIES BEFORE PROCEEDING
WITH THE WORK OR BE RESPONSIBLE FOR SAME.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

ENGINEER
OF RECORD:

VECTOR STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING, LLC
651 W. GALENA PARK BOULEVARD, SUITE 101
DRAPER, UT 84020

T-MOBILE
CONTACT:

T-MOBILE CENTRAL LLC
12920 SE 38TH STREET
BELLEVUE, WA 98006

CODE TYPE                               CODE
BUILDING 2012 IBC
MECHANICAL 2011 IMC
ELECTRICAL 2012 NEC

SITE

KEITH HAHN - A&E SPECIALIST
(314) 398-1899 TBD

TBD

VECTOR PROJECT #: U2314-227-191

07/15/2020



IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY PERSON,
UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING UNDER THE DIRECTION

OF A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER,
TO ALTER THIS DOCUMENT.

4T-2
REVISION:SHEET NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR:

DRWNREV DESCRIPTION DES./QADATE

0 03/14/2019 SK LQNPRELIMINARY

9045 RIVER ROAD, SUITE 425
INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46240

T-MOBILE SITE NUMBER:
A5D0081A

BU #: 877796
IRA STEIN PROPERTY

5290 W. 135th STREET
LEAWOOD, KS 66209

EXISTING 170'-0" MONOPOLE

312 ELM STREET, 10TH FLOOR
CINCINNATI, OH 45202

LE

C

AF

OMMUNICATIONS

1 03/28/2019 LS LQNCONSTRUCTION

2 05/30/2019 MA LQNREVISED CDs

3 06/18/2019 MA LQNREVISED CDs

4 07/10/2020 LJS LQNCD REVISION

1000 CALLE CORDILLERA,
SAN CLEMENTE, CA 92673

WWW.LEAFCOMM.COM
 (949) 388-0192

VECTOR PROJECT #: U2314-227-191

07/15/2020



IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY PERSON,
UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING UNDER THE DIRECTION

OF A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER,
TO ALTER THIS DOCUMENT.

4C-1.1
REVISION:SHEET NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR:

DRWNREV DESCRIPTION DES./QADATE

0 03/14/2019 SK LQNPRELIMINARY

9045 RIVER ROAD, SUITE 425
INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46240

T-MOBILE SITE NUMBER:
A5D0081A

BU #: 877796
IRA STEIN PROPERTY

5290 W. 135th STREET
LEAWOOD, KS 66209

EXISTING 170'-0" MONOPOLE

312 ELM STREET, 10TH FLOOR
CINCINNATI, OH 45202

LE

C

AF

OMMUNICATIONS

1 03/28/2019 LS LQNCONSTRUCTION

2 05/30/2019 MA LQNREVISED CDs

3 06/18/2019 MA LQNREVISED CDs

4 07/10/2020 LJS LQNCD REVISION

1000 CALLE CORDILLERA,
SAN CLEMENTE, CA 92673

WWW.LEAFCOMM.COM
 (949) 388-0192

VECTOR PROJECT #: U2314-227-191

07/15/2020



IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY PERSON,
UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING UNDER THE DIRECTION

OF A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER,
TO ALTER THIS DOCUMENT.

4C-1.2
REVISION:SHEET NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR:

DRWNREV DESCRIPTION DES./QADATE

0 03/14/2019 SK LQNPRELIMINARY

9045 RIVER ROAD, SUITE 425
INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46240

T-MOBILE SITE NUMBER:
A5D0081A

BU #: 877796
IRA STEIN PROPERTY

5290 W. 135th STREET
LEAWOOD, KS 66209

EXISTING 170'-0" MONOPOLE

312 ELM STREET, 10TH FLOOR
CINCINNATI, OH 45202

LE

C

AF

OMMUNICATIONS

1 03/28/2019 LS LQNCONSTRUCTION

2 05/30/2019 MA LQNREVISED CDs

3 06/18/2019 MA LQNREVISED CDs

4 07/10/2020 LJS LQNCD REVISION

1000 CALLE CORDILLERA,
SAN CLEMENTE, CA 92673

WWW.LEAFCOMM.COM
 (949) 388-0192

VECTOR PROJECT #: U2314-227-191

07/15/2020



IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY PERSON,
UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING UNDER THE DIRECTION

OF A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER,
TO ALTER THIS DOCUMENT.

4C-2
REVISION:SHEET NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR:

DRWNREV DESCRIPTION DES./QADATE

0 03/14/2019 SK LQNPRELIMINARY

9045 RIVER ROAD, SUITE 425
INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46240

T-MOBILE SITE NUMBER:
A5D0081A

BU #: 877796
IRA STEIN PROPERTY

5290 W. 135th STREET
LEAWOOD, KS 66209

EXISTING 170'-0" MONOPOLE

312 ELM STREET, 10TH FLOOR
CINCINNATI, OH 45202

LE

C

AF

OMMUNICATIONS

1 03/28/2019 LS LQNCONSTRUCTION

2 05/30/2019 MA LQNREVISED CDs

3 06/18/2019 MA LQNREVISED CDs

4 07/10/2020 LJS LQNCD REVISION

1000 CALLE CORDILLERA,
SAN CLEMENTE, CA 92673

WWW.LEAFCOMM.COM
 (949) 388-0192

VECTOR PROJECT #: U2314-227-191

07/15/2020



IT IS A VIOLATION OF LAW FOR ANY PERSON,
UNLESS THEY ARE ACTING UNDER THE DIRECTION

OF A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER,
TO ALTER THIS DOCUMENT.

4C-3
REVISION:SHEET NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR:

DRWNREV DESCRIPTION DES./QADATE

0 03/14/2019 SK LQNPRELIMINARY

9045 RIVER ROAD, SUITE 425
INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46240

T-MOBILE SITE NUMBER:
A5D0081A

BU #: 877796
IRA STEIN PROPERTY

5290 W. 135th STREET
LEAWOOD, KS 66209

EXISTING 170'-0" MONOPOLE

312 ELM STREET, 10TH FLOOR
CINCINNATI, OH 45202

LE

C

AF

OMMUNICATIONS

1 03/28/2019 LS LQNCONSTRUCTION
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tnxTower Report - version 8.0.5.0 

 
Date:   June 30, 2020 
 
 
Amanda D Brown Vertical Structures, Inc. 
Crown Castle 309 Spangler Drive, Suite E 
6325 Ardrey Kell Road, Suite 600 Richmond, KY 40475 
Charlotte, NC 28277 (859) 624-8360 
 
Subject: Structural Analysis Report 
 
Carrier Designation: T-Mobile Co-Locate 
 Carrier Site Number: A5D0081A 
 Carrier Site Name: 135th & Nall 
 
Crown Castle Designation: Crown Castle BU Number: 877796 
 Crown Castle Site Name: Ira Stein Property 
 Crown Castle JDE Job Number: 615645 
 Crown Castle Work Order Number: 1865942 
 Crown Castle Order Number: 525482 Rev. 0 
 
Engineering Firm Designation: Vertical Structures, Inc. Project Number: 2020-003-053 
 
Site Data: 5290 West 135th Street, Leawood, KS, Johnson County 
 Latitude 38° 53' 8.8'', Longitude -94° 38' 47.4'' 
 169.663 Foot - Monopole Tower 
 
Dear Amanda D Brown, 
 
Vertical Structures, Inc. is pleased to submit this “Structural Analysis Report” to determine the structural 
integrity of the above mentioned tower. 
 
The purpose of the analysis is to determine acceptability of the tower stress level.  Based on our analysis we have 
determined the tower stress level for the structure and foundation, under the following load case, to be: 
 
 LC7: Proposed Equipment Configuration Sufficient Capacity 
 
This analysis utilizes an ultimate 3-second gust wind speed of 115 mph as required by the 2012 International 
Building Code. Applicable Standard references and design criteria are listed in Section 2 - Analysis Criteria. 
 
We at Vertical Structures, Inc. appreciate the opportunity of providing our continuing professional services to 
you and Crown Castle. If you have any questions or need further assistance on this or any other projects please 
give us a call. 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
Andrew Mathis, P.E. 
Project Engineer 
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1) INTRODUCTION 
 
This tower is a 169.663 ft Monopole tower designed by EEI. 
 
The tower foundation was modified per reinforcement drawings prepared by B&T Engineering in October of 
2011.  Reinforcement consisted of installing additional rebar into the drilled pier. 
 
2) ANALYSIS CRITERIA 
 
 TIA-222 Revision: TIA-222-H 
 Risk Category: II 
 Wind Speed: 115 mph 
 Exposure Category: C 
 Topographic Factor: 1 
 Ice Thickness: 2 in 
 Wind Speed with Ice: 40 mph 
 Service Wind Speed: 60 mph 
 

Table 1 - Proposed Equipment Configuration 

Mounting 
Level (ft) 

Center 
Line 

Elevation 
(ft) 

Number 
of 

Antennas 

Antenna 
Manufacturer Antenna Model 

Number 
of Feed 
Lines 

Feed 
Line 

Size (in)

155.0 
157.0 

3 andrew TMBXX-6517-A2M w/ Mount Pipe 

12  
3 

7/8  
1 1/2 

1 commscope HCS 2.0 Part 1 
3 commscope FFHH-65C-R3 w/ Mount Pipe 
3 nokia AEHC w/ Mount Pipe 
3 nokia AHFIG 
3 nokia AHLOA 
2 raycap ASU9338TYP01 

155.0 1  Platform Mount [LP 716-1] 
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Table 2 - Other Considered Equipment 

Mounting 
Level (ft) 

Center 
Line 

Elevation 
(ft) 

Number 
of 

Antennas 

Antenna 
Manufacturer Antenna Model 

Number 
of Feed 
Lines 

Feed 
Line 

Size (in)

163.0 

165.0 
18 celwave ACU-A20-N 

3  
1  
1 

7/8  
1  

1 5/8 

3 ericsson RRUS 11 B26A 
6 ericsson RRUS 31 B25 

164.0 
3 ericsson AIR 6468 B41 w/ Mount Pipe 
6 rfs celwave APXVSPP18-C w/ Mount Pipe 

163.0 1  Platform Mount [LP 716-1] 

145.0 145.0 

1  Platform Mount [LP 716-1] 

2  
3  
6 

3/8  
3/4  

1 5/8 

3 alcatel lucent B25 RRH4x30-4R 
3 alcatel lucent B66A RRH4x45-4R 
3 cci antennas TPA65R-BU8D w/ Mount Pipe 
3 commscope E15Z01P13 
6 commscope JAH4-65C-R4 
3 nokia AHBCB 
3 nokia AHLBA 
1 raycap DC6-48-60-18-8C 

135.0 135.0 

1  Platform Mount [LP 716-1] 

1  
3  
6 

3/8  
3/4  

1 5/8 

3 alcatel lucent RRH4x25-WCS 
6 andrew SBNHH-1D65C w/ Mount Pipe 
6 commscope E15Z01P13 
1 raycap DC6-48-60-18-8F 

125.0 125.0 

1  Platform Mount [LP 716-1] 

1  
6 

1 1/4  
1 5/8 

3 commscope CBC78-DF-2X 
6 commscope LNX-6515DS-A1M w/ Mount Pipe 
3 ericsson RRUS11 B2/RRUS A2 
1 raycap RRFDC-3315-PF-48 

115.0 
116.0 

3 commscope TMA-S-DB1921-DD-A 

1  
6 

1 1/4  
1 5/8 

3 ericsson Air 32 w/ Mount Pipe 
3 kathrein 800 10510V01 w/ Mount Pipe 
1 raycap RRFDC-3315-PF-48 

115.0 1  Platform Mount [LP 716-1] 
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3) ANALYSIS PROCEDURE 
 

Table 3 - Documents Provided 

Document Remarks Reference Source 

Online Application T-Mobile Co-Locate Revision #0 525482 CCIsites 
Tower Drawing EEI Drawing No. GS49934 1549693 CCIsites 

Foundation Drawing EEI Drawing No. F2027-170.1 1473910 CCIsites 
Geotechnical Report Terracon Job No. 02965234 1449026 CCIsites 

Rework Drawings B+T Engineering Project No. 
78093.002 3039672 CCIsites 

Post Modification Inspection B+T Group Project No. 78093.004 3381470 CCIsites 
 
 3.1)  Analysis Method 
 

tnxTower (version 8.0.5.0), a commercially available analysis software package, was used to create a 
three-dimensional model of the tower and calculate member stresses for various loading cases. 
Selected output from the analysis is included in Appendix A. When applicable, Crown Castle has 
calculated and provided the effective area for panel antennas using approved methods following the 
intent of the TIA-222 Standard. 

 
 3.2)  Assumptions 
 

1) Tower and structures were maintained in accordance with the TIA-222 Standard. 
2) The configuration of antennas, transmission cables, mounts and other appurtenances are as 

specified in Tables 1 and 2 and the referenced drawings. 
 

This analysis may be affected if any assumptions are not valid or have been made in error. Vertical 
Structures, Inc. should be notified to determine the effect on the structural integrity of the tower. 
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4) ANALYSIS RESULTS 
 

Table 4 - Section Capacity (Summary) 
Section 

No. Elevation (ft) Component 
Type Size Critical 

Element
P (lb) SF*P_allow 

(lb) 
% 

Capacity
Pass / Fail 

L1 169.663 - 
117.681 Pole TP29.6996x18x0.25 1 -20735.00 1409309.94 75.3 Pass 

L2 117.681 - 
74.1134 Pole TP38.8186x28.2513x0.375 2 -33298.90 2763599.87 83.1 Pass 

L3 74.1134 - 
34.616 Pole TP46.7708x36.885x0.4375 3 -46201.30 3888286.32 83.9 Pass 

L4 34.616 - 0 Pole TP53.5x44.4969x0.4688 4 -63029.10 4916708.78 86.5 Pass

       Summary  
      Pole (L4) 86.5 Pass

      Rating =  86.5 Pass

 
Table 5 - Tower Component Stresses vs. Capacity – LC7 

Notes Component Elevation (ft) % Capacity Pass / Fail 

1 Anchor Rods 0 70.6 Pass 
1 Base Plate 0 80.7 Pass 
1 Base Foundation 0 76.7 Pass 

1 Base Foundation 
Soil Interaction 0 12.9 Pass 

 

Structure Rating (max from all components) =  86.5% 

Notes: 
1) See additional documentation in “Appendix C – Additional Calculations” for calculations supporting the % capacity.  
2) The existing structure load modification factors, Kes, from TIA-222-H Annex S were considered in this analysis.  
3) A demand-capacity ratio of 1.05 was used in this analysis as allowed by TIA-222-H.  

 
 4.1)  Recommendations 
 

The tower and its foundation have sufficient capacity to carry the proposed load configuration. No 
modifications are required at this time. 
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 Vertical Structures, Inc.  
 309 Spangler Drive, Suite E 

 Richmond, KY 40475 
 Phone: (859) 624-8360 
 FAX: (859) 624-8369 

Job: Ira Stein Property, KS BU#877796
 Project: Vertical Structures Job No. 2020-003-053
 Client:  Crown Castle  Drawn by: Andrew Mathis  App'd: 

 Code:  TIA-222-H  Date: 06/30/20  Scale: NTS 
 Path: 

\\VNAS1\Active Jobs\2020 Jobs\2020-003\2020-003-053\Ira Stein Property, KS\TNX\877796.eri
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MATERIAL STRENGTH
GRADE GRADEFy FyFu Fu

 A572-65  65 ksi  80 ksi

TOWER DESIGN NOTES
1.   Tower is located in Johnson County, Kansas.
2.   Tower designed for Exposure C to the TIA-222-H Standard.
3.   Tower designed for a 115 mph basic wind in accordance with the TIA-222-H Standard.
4.   Tower is also designed for a 40 mph basic wind with 2.00 in ice. Ice is considered to increase

 in thickness with height.
5.   Deflections are based upon a 60 mph wind.
6.   Tower Risk Category II.
7.   Topographic Category 1 with Crest Height of 0.00 ft
8.   The existing structure load modification factors, Kes, from TIA-222-H Annex S were 

 considered in this analysis
9.   A demand-capacity ratio of 1.05 was used in this analysis as allowed by TIA-222-H
10.   TOWER RATING: 86.5%
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 
 

  Tower Input Data    
 

 
The tower is a monopole. 
This tower is designed using the TIA-222-H standard. 
The following design criteria apply:  

 Tower is located in Johnson County, Kansas. 
 Tower base elevation above sea level: 971.00 ft. 
 Basic wind speed of 115 mph. 
 Risk Category II. 
 Exposure Category C. 
 Simplified Topographic Factor Procedure for wind speed-up calculations is used. 
 Topographic Category: 1. 
 Crest Height: 0.00 ft. 
 Nominal ice thickness of 2.0000 in. 
 Ice thickness is considered to increase with height. 
 Ice density of 56 pcf. 
 A wind speed of 40 mph  is used in combination with ice. 
 Temperature drop of 50 °F. 
 Deflections calculated using a wind speed of 60 mph. 
 The existing structure load modification factors, Kes, from TIA-222-H Annex S were considered in this analysis. 
 A demand-capacity ratio of 1.05 was used in this analysis as allowed by TIA-222-H. 
 A non-linear (P-delta) analysis was used. 
 Pressures are calculated at each section. 
 Stress ratio used in pole design is 1.05. 
 Tower analysis based on target reliabilities in accordance with Annex S. 
 Load Modification Factors used: Kes(Fw) = 0.95, Kes(ti) = 0.85. 
 Local bending stresses due to climbing loads, feed line supports, and appurtenance mounts are not considered. 

 

  Options    
 

  Consider Moments - Legs   Distribute Leg Loads As Uniform   Use ASCE 10 X-Brace Ly Rules 
  Consider Moments - Horizontals   Assume Legs Pinned √ Calculate Redundant Bracing Forces 
  Consider Moments - Diagonals √ Assume Rigid Index Plate   Ignore Redundant Members in FEA 
  Use Moment Magnification √ Use Clear Spans For Wind Area √ SR Leg Bolts Resist Compression 
  Use Code Stress Ratios √ Use Clear Spans For KL/r √ All Leg Panels Have Same Allowable 
  Use Code Safety Factors - Guys √ Retension Guys To Initial Tension   Offset Girt At Foundation 
  Escalate Ice √ Bypass Mast Stability Checks √ Consider Feed Line Torque 
  Always Use Max Kz √ Use Azimuth Dish Coefficients   Include Angle Block Shear Check 
  Use Special Wind Profile √ Project Wind Area of Appurt.   Use TIA-222-H Bracing Resist. Exemption

√ Include Bolts In Member Capacity √ Autocalc Torque Arm Areas   Use TIA-222-H Tension Splice Exemption 
√ Leg Bolts Are At Top Of Section   Add IBC .6D+W Combination Poles 
√ Secondary Horizontal Braces Leg   Sort Capacity Reports By Component √ Include Shear-Torsion Interaction 
  Use Diamond Inner Bracing (4 Sided) √ Triangulate Diamond Inner Bracing    Always Use Sub-Critical Flow 

√ SR Members Have Cut Ends   Treat Feed Line Bundles As Cylinder   Use Top Mounted Sockets 
  SR Members Are Concentric   Ignore KL/ry For 60 Deg. Angle Legs   Pole Without Linear Attachments 
          Pole With Shroud Or No Appurtenances 
          Outside and Inside Corner Radii Are 

Known 
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  Tapered Pole Section Geometry    
 
 Section Elevation  

 
ft 

Section 
Length 

ft 

Splice 
 Length 

ft 

Number
of 

Sides 

Top 
Diameter

in 

Bottom 
Diameter

in 

Wall 
Thickness

in 

Bend 
Radius 

in 

Pole Grade 

L1 169.66-117.68 51.98 4.21 12 18.0000 29.6996 0.2500 1.0000 A572-65 
(65 ksi) 

L2 117.68-74.11 47.78 5.35 12 28.2513 38.8186 0.3750 1.5000 A572-65 
(65 ksi) 

L3 74.11-34.62 44.85 6.35 12 36.8850 46.7708 0.4375 1.7500 A572-65 
(65 ksi) 

L4 34.62-0.00 40.96   12 44.4969 53.5000 0.4688 1.8750 A572-65 
(65 ksi) 

 
 
 

 Tapered Pole Properties    
 
 Section Tip Dia. 

in 
Area 
in2 

I 
in4 

r 
in 

C  
in 

I/C 
in3 

J 
in4 

It/Q 
in2 

w 
in 

w/t 

L1 18.5468 14.2888 574.6149 6.3545 9.3240 61.6275 1164.3256 7.0325 4.1540 16.616 
  30.6591 23.7069 2624.3396 10.5430 15.3844 170.5845 5317.6235 11.6678 7.2895 29.158 

L2 30.0803 33.6606 3338.6950 9.9797 14.6342 228.1440 6765.1013 16.5667 6.5663 17.51 
  40.0557 46.4206 8756.7961 13.7628 20.1080 435.4874 17743.6431 22.8468 9.3984 25.062 

L3 39.2531 51.3455 8706.1157 13.0482 19.1064 455.6637 17640.9508 25.2707 8.7127 19.915 
  48.2664 65.2720 17885.4379 16.5873 24.2273 738.2357 36240.7462 32.1249 11.3621 25.97 

L4 47.3453 66.4550 16442.7553 15.7621 23.0494 713.3703 33317.4800 32.7071 10.6689 22.76 
  55.2219 80.0440 28732.8493 18.9852 27.7130 1036.8004 58220.5425 39.3952 13.0818 27.908 

 
Tower 

 Elevation 
 
 

ft 

Gusset 
Area 

(per face) 
 

ft2 

Gusset 
Thickness 

 
 

in 

Gusset Grade Adjust. Factor
Af 

Adjust. 
Factor  

Ar 

Weight Mult. 
 

Double Angle 
Stitch Bolt 
Spacing 

Diagonals 
in 

Double Angle 
Stitch Bolt 
Spacing 

Horizontals 
in 

Double Angle 
Stitch Bolt 
Spacing 

Redundants 
in 

L1 
169.66-117.68 

      1 1 1       

L2 
117.68-74.11 

      1 1 1       

L3 74.11-34.62       1 1 1       
L4 34.62-0.00       1 1 1       

 
 

 

 Feed Line/Linear Appurtenances - Entered As Area 
 

Description Face 
or 

Leg  

Allow 
Shield 

Exclude 
From 

Torque 
Calculation 

Component
Type 

Placement 
 

ft 

Total 
Number 

 CAAA 
 

ft2/ft 

Weight 
 

plf 

LDF5-50A (7/8 
FOAM) 

C No No Inside Pole 157.00 - 6.00 12 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.33 
0.33 
0.33 
0.33 

ASU9325TYP01_C
CIV2 (1-1/2) 

C No No Inside Pole 157.00 - 6.00 2 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

1.61 
1.61 
1.61 
1.61 

HCS 2.0 Part 3 C No No Inside Pole 157.00 - 6.00 1 No Ice 0.00 1.71 
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Description Face 
or 

Leg  

Allow 
Shield 

Exclude 
From 

Torque 
Calculation 

Component
Type 

Placement 
 

ft 

Total 
Number 

 CAAA 
 

ft2/ft 

Weight 
 

plf 

(1-1/2) 1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

1.71 
1.71 
1.71 

**                   
LDF7-50A (1-5/8 

FOAM) 
B No No Inside Pole 116.00 - 6.00 6 No Ice 

1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 

LDF6-50A (1-1/4 
FOAM) 

B No No Inside Pole 116.00 - 6.00 1 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.66 
0.66 
0.66 
0.66 

LDF7-50A (1-5/8 
FOAM) 

B No No Inside Pole 125.00 - 6.00 6 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 

LDF6-50A (1-1/4 
FOAM) 

B No No Inside Pole 125.00 - 6.00 1 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.66 
0.66 
0.66 
0.66 

**                   
LDF5-50A (7/8 

FOAM) 
A No No Inside Pole 164.00 - 6.00 3 No Ice 

1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.33 
0.33 
0.33 
0.33 

Type 1A (1'') A No No Inside Pole 164.00 - 6.00 1 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.79 
0.79 
0.79 
0.79 

942-98888-1FXXX 
(1-5/8'' Fiber) 

A No No Inside Pole 164.00 - 6.00 1 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

2.33 
2.33 
2.33 
2.33 

**                   
FB-L98-002-XXX 

(3/8'') 
C No No Inside Pole 135.00 - 6.00 1 No Ice 

1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.07 
0.07 
0.07 
0.07 

WR-VG86T (Power 
Cable) 

C No No Inside Pole 135.00 - 6.00 3 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.53 
0.53 
0.53 
0.53 

LDF7-50A (1-5/8 
FOAM) 

C No No Inside Pole 135.00 - 6.00 6 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 

FB-L98B-034-XXX 
(3/8'') 

C No No Inside Pole 145.00 - 6.00 2 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.06 
0.06 
0.06 
0.06 

WR-VG86T (Power 
Cable) 

C No No Inside Pole 145.00 - 6.00 3 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.53 
0.53 
0.53 
0.53 

LDF7-50A (1-5/8 
FOAM) 

C No No Inside Pole 145.00 - 6.00 6 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice 
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
0.82 
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 Feed Line/Linear Appurtenances Section Areas  
 
Tower 
Section 

Tower 
 Elevation 

ft 

Face AR 

 
 ft2 

AF 

  
ft2 

CAAA 

In Face  
ft2 

CAAA 

Out Face 
ft2 

Weight 
 

lb 
L1 169.66-117.68 A 

B 
C 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

190.42 
40.84 

644.40 
L2 117.68-74.11 A 

B 
C 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

179.11 
476.84 
962.37 

L3 74.11-34.62 A 
B 
C 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

162.37 
440.79 
872.46 

L4 34.62-0.00 A 
B 
C 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

117.64 
319.35 
632.10 

 
 

 Feed Line/Linear Appurtenances Section Areas - With Ice 
 
Tower 
Section 

Tower 
 Elevation 

ft 

Face 
or 

Leg  

Ice 
Thickness 

in 

AR 

 
 ft2 

AF 

  
ft2 

CAAA 

In Face  
ft2 

CAAA 

Out Face 
ft2 

Weight 
 

lb 
L1 169.66-117.68 A 

B 
C 

1.967 0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

190.42 
40.84 

644.40 
L2 117.68-74.11 A 

B 
C 

1.890 0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

179.11 
476.84 
962.37 

L3 74.11-34.62 A 
B 
C 

1.786 0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

162.37 
440.79 
872.46 

L4 34.62-0.00 A 
B 
C 

1.594 0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

0.000 
0.000 
0.000 

117.64 
319.35 
632.10 

 
 
 

   Feed Line Center of Pressure     
 

 Section Elevation  
 

ft 

CPX 

 
in 

CPZ 

 
in 

CPX 

Ice 
in 

CPZ 

Ice 
in 

L1 169.66-117.68 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 
L2 117.68-74.11 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 
L3 74.11-34.62 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 
L4 34.62-0.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 

 
 
Note: For pole sections, center of pressure calculations do not consider feed line shielding.  
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 Shielding Factor Ka 
 

Tower 
Section 

Feed Line 
Record No. 

Description Feed Line 
Segment Elev.

Ka 
No Ice 

Ka 
Ice 

 

   Discrete Tower Loads    
 

Description Face 
or 

Leg 

Offset 
Type 

Offsets: 
Horz 

Lateral 
Vert 

ft 
ft 
ft 

Azimuth 
Adjustment

 
 
° 

Placement 
 
 
 

ft 

 CAAA 
Front 

 
 

ft2 

CAAA 
Side 

 
 

ft2 

Weight 
 
 
 

lb 

Lightning Rod 8' x 5/8'' (VSI) C None   0.0000 174.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.50 
1.31 
2.14 
3.61 

0.50 
1.31 
2.14 
3.61 

90.00 
95.56 

106.23 
143.49 

**                   
Platform Mount [LP 716-1] C None   0.0000 163.00 No Ice 

1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

26.80 
32.20 
37.60 
48.40 

26.80 
32.20 
37.60 
48.40 

1509.44 
1811.33 
2113.22 
2717.00 

(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe B From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe C From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
(3) ACU-A20-N Diplexer A From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

10.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.12 
0.16 
0.21 
0.34 

0.07 
0.10 
0.15 
0.26 

1.04 
2.32 
4.41 
11.80 

(3) ACU-A20-N Diplexer A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

40.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.12 
0.16 
0.21 
0.34 

0.07 
0.10 
0.15 
0.26 

1.04 
2.32 
4.41 
11.80 

(3) ACU-A20-N Diplexer B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

10.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.12 
0.16 
0.21 
0.34 

0.07 
0.10 
0.15 
0.26 

1.04 
2.32 
4.41 
11.80 

(3) ACU-A20-N Diplexer B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

40.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.12 
0.16 
0.21 
0.34 

0.07 
0.10 
0.15 
0.26 

1.04 
2.32 
4.41 
11.80 

(3) ACU-A20-N Diplexer C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

-20.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.12 
0.16 
0.21 
0.34 

0.07 
0.10 
0.15 
0.26 

1.04 
2.32 
4.41 
11.80 

(3) ACU-A20-N Diplexer C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.12 
0.16 
0.21 
0.34 

0.07 
0.10 
0.15 
0.26 

1.04 
2.32 
4.41 
11.80 
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Description Face 
or 

Leg 

Offset 
Type 

Offsets: 
Horz 

Lateral 
Vert 

ft 
ft 
ft 

Azimuth 
Adjustment

 
 
° 

Placement 
 
 
 

ft 

 CAAA 
Front 

 
 

ft2 

CAAA 
Side 

 
 

ft2 

Weight 
 
 
 

lb 

(2) RRUS 31 B25 BTS A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

40.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.62 
1.78 
1.95 
2.31 

1.28 
1.43 
1.58 
1.91 

56.10 
72.19 
90.91 

137.03 
(2) RRUS 31 B25 BTS B From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

40.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.62 
1.78 
1.95 
2.31 

1.28 
1.43 
1.58 
1.91 

56.10 
72.19 
90.91 

137.03 
(2) RRUS 31 B25 BTS C From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.62 
1.78 
1.95 
2.31 

1.28 
1.43 
1.58 
1.91 

56.10 
72.19 
90.91 

137.03 
RRUS 11 B26A BTS A From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

40.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.79 
3.00 
3.21 
3.67 

1.19 
1.34 
1.50 
1.84 

50.71 
71.58 
95.49 

153.21 
RRUS 11 B26A BTS B From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

40.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.79 
3.00 
3.21 
3.67 

1.19 
1.34 
1.50 
1.84 

50.71 
71.58 
95.49 

153.21 
RRUS 11 B26A BTS C From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.79 
3.00 
3.21 
3.67 

1.19 
1.34 
1.50 
1.84 

50.71 
71.58 
95.49 

153.21 
(2) APXVSPP18-C w/ Mount 

Pipe 
A From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

40.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

4.60 
5.05 
5.50 
6.44 

4.01 
4.45 
4.89 
5.82 

90.09 
154.53 
229.77 
414.06 

(2) APXVSPP18-C w/ Mount 
Pipe 

B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

40.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

4.60 
5.05 
5.50 
6.44 

4.01 
4.45 
4.89 
5.82 

90.09 
154.53 
229.77 
414.06 

(2) APXVSPP18-C w/ Mount 
Pipe 

C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

0.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

4.60 
5.05 
5.50 
6.44 

4.01 
4.45 
4.89 
5.82 

90.09 
154.53 
229.77 
414.06 

AIR 6468 B41 w/ Mount Pipe A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

10.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

7.68 
8.51 
9.26 
10.55 

4.44 
5.51 
6.44 
7.97 

162.36 
224.79 
293.78 
455.41 

AIR 6468 B41 w/ Mount Pipe B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

10.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

7.68 
8.51 
9.26 
10.55 

4.44 
5.51 
6.44 
7.97 

162.36 
224.79 
293.78 
455.41 

AIR 6468 B41 w/ Mount Pipe C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

-20.0000 163.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

7.68 
8.51 
9.26 
10.55 

4.44 
5.51 
6.44 
7.97 

162.36 
224.79 
293.78 
455.41 

**                   
Platform Mount [LP 716-1] C None   0.0000 155.00 No Ice 

1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

26.80 
32.20 
37.60 
48.40 

26.80 
32.20 
37.60 
48.40 

1509.44 
1811.33 
2113.22 
2717.00 

AEHC w/ Mount Pipe A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

7.94 
8.79 
9.55 
10.87 

4.50 
5.57 
6.48 
7.99 

128.40 
193.50 
265.18 
432.30 
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Description Face 
or 

Leg 

Offset 
Type 

Offsets: 
Horz 

Lateral 
Vert 

ft 
ft 
ft 

Azimuth 
Adjustment

 
 
° 

Placement 
 
 
 

ft 

 CAAA 
Front 

 
 

ft2 

CAAA 
Side 

 
 

ft2 

Weight 
 
 
 

lb 

AEHC w/ Mount Pipe B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

7.94 
8.79 
9.55 
10.87 

4.50 
5.57 
6.48 
7.99 

128.40 
193.50 
265.18 
432.30 

AEHC w/ Mount Pipe C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

7.94 
8.79 
9.55 
10.87 

4.50 
5.57 
6.48 
7.99 

128.40 
193.50 
265.18 
432.30 

TMBXX-6517-A2M w/ 
Mount Pipe 

A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

7.97 
8.73 
9.50 
11.10 

5.97 
6.70 
7.44 
8.99 

79.38 
142.74 
217.16 
400.59 

TMBXX-6517-A2M w/ 
Mount Pipe 

B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

7.97 
8.73 
9.50 
11.10 

5.97 
6.70 
7.44 
8.99 

79.38 
142.74 
217.16 
400.59 

TMBXX-6517-A2M w/ 
Mount Pipe 

C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

7.97 
8.73 
9.50 
11.10 

5.97 
6.70 
7.44 
8.99 

79.38 
142.74 
217.16 
400.59 

FFHH-65C-R3 w/ Mount 
Pipe 

A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

12.97 
13.62 
14.27 
15.62 

6.20 
6.77 
7.36 
8.57 

160.51 
295.65 
445.34 
789.74 

FFHH-65C-R3 w/ Mount 
Pipe 

B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

12.97 
13.62 
14.27 
15.62 

6.20 
6.77 
7.36 
8.57 

160.51 
295.65 
445.34 
789.74 

FFHH-65C-R3 w/ Mount 
Pipe 

C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

12.97 
13.62 
14.27 
15.62 

6.20 
6.77 
7.36 
8.57 

160.51 
295.65 
445.34 
789.74 

AHFIG BTS A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

3.08 
3.31 
3.55 
4.05 

1.40 
1.59 
1.78 
2.17 

79.40 
100.37 
124.55 
183.34 

AHFIG BTS B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

3.08 
3.31 
3.55 
4.05 

1.40 
1.59 
1.78 
2.17 

79.40 
100.37 
124.55 
183.34 

AHFIG BTS C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

3.08 
3.31 
3.55 
4.05 

1.40 
1.59 
1.78 
2.17 

79.40 
100.37 
124.55 
183.34 

AHLOA BTS A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.23 
2.42 
2.62 
3.05 

1.39 
1.55 
1.72 
2.08 

83.80 
102.09 
123.27 
175.09 

AHLOA BTS B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.23 
2.42 
2.62 
3.05 

1.39 
1.55 
1.72 
2.08 

83.80 
102.09 
123.27 
175.09 

AHLOA BTS C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.23 
2.42 
2.62 
3.05 

1.39 
1.55 
1.72 
2.08 

83.80 
102.09 
123.27 
175.09 

HCS 2.0 Part 1 Junction Box A From 6.20 0.0000 155.00 No Ice 1.87 1.07 23.50 
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Description Face 
or 

Leg 

Offset 
Type 

Offsets: 
Horz 

Lateral 
Vert 

ft 
ft 
ft 

Azimuth 
Adjustment

 
 
° 

Placement 
 
 
 

ft 

 CAAA 
Front 

 
 

ft2 

CAAA 
Side 

 
 

ft2 

Weight 
 
 
 

lb 

Centroid-Le
g 

0.00 
2.00 

1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.04 
2.21 
2.59 

1.20 
1.35 
1.66 

39.80 
58.76 

105.43 
ASU9338TYP01 Junction 

Box 
A From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

3.20 
3.42 
3.65 
4.13 

1.03 
1.17 
1.32 
1.64 

19.00 
40.36 
64.84 

123.92 
ASU9338TYP01 Junction 

Box 
B From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
2.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

3.20 
3.42 
3.65 
4.13 

1.03 
1.17 
1.32 
1.64 

19.00 
40.36 
64.84 

123.92 
8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe A From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe B From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe C From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 155.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
**                   

Platform Mount [LP 716-1] C None   0.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

26.80 
32.20 
37.60 
48.40 

26.80 
32.20 
37.60 
48.40 

1509.44 
1811.33 
2113.22 
2717.00 

SitePro1 PRK-SFS Stabilizer 
Kit (3) 

C None   0.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

6.38 
8.48 
10.59 
14.80 

6.38 
8.48 
10.59 
14.80 

588.00 
766.00 
944.00 
1300.00 

DC6-48-60-18-8C A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.74 
2.96 
3.20 
3.68 

2.74 
2.96 
3.20 
3.68 

26.20 
52.16 
81.68 

152.16 
B66A RRH4x45-4R BTS A From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.54 
2.75 
2.97 
3.43 

1.61 
1.79 
1.98 
2.37 

56.80 
76.92 

100.15 
156.66 

B66A RRH4x45-4R BTS B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.54 
2.75 
2.97 
3.43 

1.61 
1.79 
1.98 
2.37 

56.80 
76.92 

100.15 
156.66 

B66A RRH4x45-4R BTS C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.54 
2.75 
2.97 
3.43 

1.61 
1.79 
1.98 
2.37 

56.80 
76.92 

100.15 
156.66 

BSAMNT-SBS-2-2 Mounting 
Bracket (3) 

A None   0.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

202.20 
242.50 
282.80 
363.40 

8'x3'' Pipe Mount A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.80 
3.41 
3.89 
4.90 

2.80 
3.41 
3.89 
4.90 

61.00 
81.06 

106.52 
174.24 

8'x3'' Pipe Mount B From 6.20 0.0000 145.00 No Ice 2.80 2.80 61.00 
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Vertical Structures, Inc.  
309 Spangler Drive, Suite E 

Project 

Vertical Structures Job No. 2020-003-053 
Date 
11:42:21 06/30/20  

Richmond, KY 40475 
Phone: (859) 624-8360 
FAX: (859) 624-8369 

Client 
Crown Castle 

Designed by 
Andrew Mathis 

Description Face 
or 

Leg 

Offset 
Type 

Offsets: 
Horz 

Lateral 
Vert 

ft 
ft 
ft 

Azimuth 
Adjustment

 
 
° 

Placement 
 
 
 

ft 

 CAAA 
Front 

 
 

ft2 

CAAA 
Side 

 
 

ft2 

Weight 
 
 
 

lb 

Centroid-Le
g 

0.00 
0.00 

1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

3.41 
3.89 
4.90 

3.41 
3.89 
4.90 

81.06 
106.52 
174.24 

8'x3'' Pipe Mount C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.80 
3.41 
3.89 
4.90 

2.80 
3.41 
3.89 
4.90 

61.00 
81.06 

106.52 
174.24 

(2) JAH4-65C-R4 A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

6.46 
7.00 
7.55 
8.68 

3.86 
4.37 
4.89 
5.97 

87.30 
163.27 
247.08 
439.01 

(2) JAH4-65C-R4 B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

6.46 
7.00 
7.55 
8.68 

3.86 
4.37 
4.89 
5.97 

87.30 
163.27 
247.08 
439.01 

(2) JAH4-65C-R4 C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

6.46 
7.00 
7.55 
8.68 

3.86 
4.37 
4.89 
5.97 

87.30 
163.27 
247.08 
439.01 

AHLBA BTS A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

3.67 
3.92 
4.18 
4.71 

2.31 
2.51 
2.73 
3.18 

101.40 
130.93 
164.13 
242.28 

AHLBA BTS B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

3.67 
3.92 
4.18 
4.71 

2.31 
2.51 
2.73 
3.18 

101.40 
130.93 
164.13 
242.28 

AHLBA BTS C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

3.67 
3.92 
4.18 
4.71 

2.31 
2.51 
2.73 
3.18 

101.40 
130.93 
164.13 
242.28 

B25 RRH4x30-4R BTS A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.14 
2.33 
2.53 
2.94 

1.31 
1.46 
1.63 
1.98 

51.00 
68.46 
88.75 

138.59 
B25 RRH4x30-4R BTS B From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.14 
2.33 
2.53 
2.94 

1.31 
1.46 
1.63 
1.98 

51.00 
68.46 
88.75 

138.59 
B25 RRH4x30-4R BTS C From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.14 
2.33 
2.53 
2.94 

1.31 
1.46 
1.63 
1.98 

51.00 
68.46 
88.75 

138.59 
TPA65R-BU8D w/ Mount 

Pipe 
A From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

15.94 
16.87 
17.82 
19.76 

7.91 
8.76 
9.63 
11.40 

120.41 
235.35 
364.46 
666.60 

TPA65R-BU8D w/ Mount 
Pipe 

B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

15.94 
16.87 
17.82 
19.76 

7.91 
8.76 
9.63 
11.40 

120.41 
235.35 
364.46 
666.60 

TPA65R-BU8D w/ Mount 
Pipe 

C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

15.94 
16.87 
17.82 
19.76 

7.91 
8.76 
9.63 
11.40 

120.41 
235.35 
364.46 
666.60 

E15Z01P13 TMA A From 
Centroid-Le

6.20 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice

0.78 
0.90 

0.60 
0.70 

24.00 
31.50 
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Vertical Structures, Inc.  
309 Spangler Drive, Suite E 

Project 

Vertical Structures Job No. 2020-003-053 
Date 
11:42:21 06/30/20  

Richmond, KY 40475 
Phone: (859) 624-8360 
FAX: (859) 624-8369 

Client 
Crown Castle 

Designed by 
Andrew Mathis 

Description Face 
or 

Leg 

Offset 
Type 

Offsets: 
Horz 

Lateral 
Vert 

ft 
ft 
ft 

Azimuth 
Adjustment

 
 
° 

Placement 
 
 
 

ft 

 CAAA 
Front 

 
 

ft2 

CAAA 
Side 

 
 

ft2 

Weight 
 
 
 

lb 

g 0.00 1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.02 
1.29 

0.82 
1.07 

40.86 
65.94 

E15Z01P13 TMA B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.78 
0.90 
1.02 
1.29 

0.60 
0.70 
0.82 
1.07 

24.00 
31.50 
40.86 
65.94 

E15Z01P13 TMA C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.78 
0.90 
1.02 
1.29 

0.60 
0.70 
0.82 
1.07 

24.00 
31.50 
40.86 
65.94 

AHBCB BTS A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.23 
2.42 
2.62 
3.05 

1.39 
1.55 
1.72 
2.08 

85.98 
104.27 
125.45 
177.27 

AHBCB BTS B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.23 
2.42 
2.62 
3.05 

1.39 
1.55 
1.72 
2.08 

85.98 
104.27 
125.45 
177.27 

AHBCB BTS C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.23 
2.42 
2.62 
3.05 

1.39 
1.55 
1.72 
2.08 

85.98 
104.27 
125.45 
177.27 

(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe B From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe C From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 145.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
**                   

Platform Mount [LP 716-1] C None   0.0000 135.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

26.80 
32.20 
37.60 
48.40 

26.80 
32.20 
37.60 
48.40 

1509.44 
1811.33 
2113.22 
2717.00 

(2) SBNHH-1D65C w/ 
Mount Pipe 

A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 135.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

5.56 
6.07 
6.59 
7.66 

4.47 
4.97 
5.48 
6.52 

82.69 
164.73 
260.38 
493.89 

(2) SBNHH-1D65C w/ 
Mount Pipe 

B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 135.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

5.56 
6.07 
6.59 
7.66 

4.47 
4.97 
5.48 
6.52 

82.69 
164.73 
260.38 
493.89 

(2) SBNHH-1D65C w/ 
Mount Pipe 

C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 135.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

5.56 
6.07 
6.59 
7.66 

4.47 
4.97 
5.48 
6.52 

82.69 
164.73 
260.38 
493.89 

(2) E15Z01P13 TMA A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 135.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.78 
0.90 
1.02 
1.29 

0.60 
0.70 
0.82 
1.07 

24.00 
31.50 
40.86 
65.94 

(2) E15Z01P13 TMA B From 
Centroid-Le

6.20 
0.00 

29.0000 135.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice

0.78 
0.90 

0.60 
0.70 

24.00 
31.50 
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Vertical Structures, Inc.  
309 Spangler Drive, Suite E 

Project 

Vertical Structures Job No. 2020-003-053 
Date 
11:42:21 06/30/20  

Richmond, KY 40475 
Phone: (859) 624-8360 
FAX: (859) 624-8369 

Client 
Crown Castle 

Designed by 
Andrew Mathis 

Description Face 
or 

Leg 

Offset 
Type 

Offsets: 
Horz 

Lateral 
Vert 

ft 
ft 
ft 

Azimuth 
Adjustment

 
 
° 

Placement 
 
 
 

ft 

 CAAA 
Front 

 
 

ft2 

CAAA 
Side 

 
 

ft2 

Weight 
 
 
 

lb 

g 0.00 1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.02 
1.29 

0.82 
1.07 

40.86 
65.94 

(2) E15Z01P13 TMA C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 135.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.78 
0.90 
1.02 
1.29 

0.60 
0.70 
0.82 
1.07 

24.00 
31.50 
40.86 
65.94 

RRH4x25-WCS A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 135.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

3.84 
4.09 
4.36 
4.94 

3.34 
3.59 
3.84 
4.38 

91.00 
125.34 
163.70 
253.31 

RRH4x25-WCS B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 135.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

3.84 
4.09 
4.36 
4.94 

3.34 
3.59 
3.84 
4.38 

91.00 
125.34 
163.70 
253.31 

RRH4x25-WCS C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 135.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

3.84 
4.09 
4.36 
4.94 

3.34 
3.59 
3.84 
4.38 

91.00 
125.34 
163.70 
253.31 

DC6-48-60-18-8F 
(31.25x11x11 32.8lbs) 

C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

29.0000 135.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.90 
3.13 
3.37 
3.86 

2.90 
3.13 
3.37 
3.86 

32.80 
60.76 
92.36 

167.29 
(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe A From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 135.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe B From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 135.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe C From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 135.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
**                   

Platform Mount [LP 716-1] C None   0.0000 125.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

26.80 
32.20 
37.60 
48.40 

26.80 
32.20 
37.60 
48.40 

1509.44 
1811.33 
2113.22 
2717.00 

(2) LNX-6515DS-A1M w/ 
Mount Pipe 

A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 125.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

5.31 
5.80 
6.30 
7.33 

4.27 
4.75 
5.24 
6.24 

83.39 
165.43 
261.08 
494.59 

(2) LNX-6515DS-A1M w/ 
Mount Pipe 

B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 125.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

5.31 
5.80 
6.30 
7.33 

4.27 
4.75 
5.24 
6.24 

83.39 
165.43 
261.08 
494.59 

(2) LNX-6515DS-A1M w/ 
Mount Pipe 

C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 125.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

5.31 
5.80 
6.30 
7.33 

4.27 
4.75 
5.24 
6.24 

83.39 
165.43 
261.08 
494.59 

CBC78-DF-2X Diplexer A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 125.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.39 
0.47 
0.56 
0.75 

0.38 
0.45 
0.54 
0.74 

13.80 
18.52 
24.71 
42.22 

CBC78-DF-2X Diplexer B From 
Centroid-Le

6.20 
0.00 

0.0000 125.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice

0.39 
0.47 

0.38 
0.45 

13.80 
18.52 
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Vertical Structures, Inc.  
309 Spangler Drive, Suite E 

Project 

Vertical Structures Job No. 2020-003-053 
Date 
11:42:21 06/30/20  

Richmond, KY 40475 
Phone: (859) 624-8360 
FAX: (859) 624-8369 

Client 
Crown Castle 

Designed by 
Andrew Mathis 

Description Face 
or 

Leg 

Offset 
Type 

Offsets: 
Horz 

Lateral 
Vert 

ft 
ft 
ft 

Azimuth 
Adjustment

 
 
° 

Placement 
 
 
 

ft 

 CAAA 
Front 

 
 

ft2 

CAAA 
Side 

 
 

ft2 

Weight 
 
 
 

lb 

g 0.00 1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.56 
0.75 

0.54 
0.74 

24.71 
42.22 

CBC78-DF-2X Diplexer C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 125.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.39 
0.47 
0.56 
0.75 

0.38 
0.45 
0.54 
0.74 

13.80 
18.52 
24.71 
42.22 

RRUS11 B2/RRUS A2 BTS A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 125.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.83 
3.04 
3.26 
3.71 

1.18 
1.33 
1.48 
1.83 

50.70 
71.57 
95.49 

153.24 
RRUS11 B2/RRUS A2 BTS B From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 125.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.83 
3.04 
3.26 
3.71 

1.18 
1.33 
1.48 
1.83 

50.70 
71.57 
95.49 

153.24 
RRUS11 B2/RRUS A2 BTS C From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 125.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

2.83 
3.04 
3.26 
3.71 

1.18 
1.33 
1.48 
1.83 

50.70 
71.57 
95.49 

153.24 
RRFDC-3315-PF-48 
(28.93x15.73x10.31) 

A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 125.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

3.79 
4.04 
4.30 
4.84 

2.51 
2.73 
2.95 
3.42 

32.00 
63.48 
98.72 

181.25 
(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe A From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 125.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe B From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 125.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe C From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
0.00 

0.0000 125.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
**                   

Platform Mount [LP 716-1] C None   0.0000 115.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

26.80 
32.20 
37.60 
48.40 

26.80 
32.20 
37.60 
48.40 

1509.44 
1811.33 
2113.22 
2717.00 

Air 32 w/ Mount Pipe A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

0.0000 115.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

6.04 
6.47 
6.90 
7.78 

5.72 
6.46 
7.15 
8.57 

128.58 
185.00 
248.04 
397.02 

Air 32 w/ Mount Pipe B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

0.0000 115.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

6.04 
6.47 
6.90 
7.78 

5.72 
6.46 
7.15 
8.57 

128.58 
185.00 
248.04 
397.02 

Air 32 w/ Mount Pipe C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

0.0000 115.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

6.04 
6.47 
6.90 
7.78 

5.72 
6.46 
7.15 
8.57 

128.58 
185.00 
248.04 
397.02 

800 10510V01 w/ Mount 
Pipe 

A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

0.0000 115.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

6.02 
6.59 
7.18 
8.41 

2.59 
3.10 
3.62 
4.72 

69.62 
110.47 
159.85 
285.60 

800 10510V01 w/ Mount 
Pipe 

B From 
Centroid-Le

6.20 
0.00 

0.0000 115.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice

6.02 
6.59 

2.59 
3.10 

69.62 
110.47 
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Vertical Structures, Inc.  
309 Spangler Drive, Suite E 

Project 

Vertical Structures Job No. 2020-003-053 
Date 
11:42:21 06/30/20  

Richmond, KY 40475 
Phone: (859) 624-8360 
FAX: (859) 624-8369 

Client 
Crown Castle 

Designed by 
Andrew Mathis 

Description Face 
or 

Leg 

Offset 
Type 

Offsets: 
Horz 

Lateral 
Vert 

ft 
ft 
ft 

Azimuth 
Adjustment

 
 
° 

Placement 
 
 
 

ft 

 CAAA 
Front 

 
 

ft2 

CAAA 
Side 

 
 

ft2 

Weight 
 
 
 

lb 

g 1.00 1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

7.18 
8.41 

3.62 
4.72 

159.85 
285.60 

800 10510V01 w/ Mount 
Pipe 

C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

0.0000 115.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

6.02 
6.59 
7.18 
8.41 

2.59 
3.10 
3.62 
4.72 

69.62 
110.47 
159.85 
285.60 

TMA-S-DB1921-DD-A TMA A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

0.0000 115.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.72 
0.82 
0.94 
1.19 

0.39 
0.48 
0.57 
0.78 

22.00 
28.41 
36.52 
58.64 

TMA-S-DB1921-DD-A TMA B From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

0.0000 115.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.72 
0.82 
0.94 
1.19 

0.39 
0.48 
0.57 
0.78 

22.00 
28.41 
36.52 
58.64 

TMA-S-DB1921-DD-A TMA C From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

0.0000 115.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

0.72 
0.82 
0.94 
1.19 

0.39 
0.48 
0.57 
0.78 

22.00 
28.41 
36.52 
58.64 

RRFDC-3315-PF-48 
(28.93x15.73x10.31) 

A From 
Centroid-Le

g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

0.0000 115.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

3.79 
4.04 
4.30 
4.84 

2.51 
2.73 
2.95 
3.42 

32.00 
63.48 
98.72 

181.25 
(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe A From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

0.0000 115.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe B From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

0.0000 115.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 
(2) 8'x2'' Antenna Mount Pipe C From 

Centroid-Le
g 

6.20 
0.00 
1.00 

0.0000 115.00 No Ice 
1/2'' Ice
1'' Ice 
2'' Ice 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

1.90 
2.73 
3.40 
4.40 

30.00 
44.34 
63.96 

119.66 

 
 
 
 

 Compression Checks   
 

 

 Pole Design Data    
 
Section 

No. 
Elevation 

 
ft 

Size 
 

L 
 

ft 

Lu 

 
ft 

Kl/r 
 

A 
 

in2 

Pu 

 

lb 

Pn 
 

lb 

Ratio 
Pu 

Pn 
L1 169.663 - 

117.681 (1) 
TP29.6996x18x0.25 51.98 0.00 0.0 22.9435 -20735.00 1342200.00 0.015  

L2 117.681 - 
74.1134 (2) 

TP38.8186x28.2513x0.375 47.78 0.00 0.0 44.9915 -33298.90 2632000.00 0.013  

L3 74.1134 - 
34.616 (3) 

TP46.7708x36.885x0.4375 44.85 0.00 0.0 63.3013 -46201.30 3703130.00 0.012  
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Vertical Structures, Inc.  
309 Spangler Drive, Suite E 

Project 

Vertical Structures Job No. 2020-003-053 
Date 
11:42:21 06/30/20  

Richmond, KY 40475 
Phone: (859) 624-8360 
FAX: (859) 624-8369 

Client 
Crown Castle 

Designed by 
Andrew Mathis 

Section 
No. 

Elevation 
 

ft 

Size 
 

L 
 

ft 

Lu 

 
ft 

Kl/r 
 

A 
 

in2 

Pu 

 

lb 

Pn 
 

lb 

Ratio 
Pu 

Pn 
L4 34.616 - 0 (4) TP53.5x44.4969x0.4688 40.96 0.00 0.0 80.0440 -63029.10 4682580.00 0.013  

                    

 
 

 Pole Bending Design Data    
 
Section 

No. 
Elevation 

 
ft 

Size 
 

Mux 

 
lb-ft 

Mnx 

 
lb-ft 

Ratio 
Mux 

Mnx 

Muy 

 
lb-ft 

Mny 

 
lb-ft 

Ratio 
Muy 

Mny 
L1 169.663 - 

117.681 (1) 
TP29.6996x18x0.25 670165.00 869266.67 0.771 0.00 869266.67 0.000 

L2 117.681 - 
74.1134 (2) 

TP38.8186x28.2513x0.375 2022450.00 2356883.33 0.858 0.00 2356883.33 0.000 

L3 74.1134 - 
34.616 (3) 

TP46.7708x36.885x0.4375 3423691.67 3949416.67 0.867 0.00 3949416.67 0.000 

L4 34.616 - 0 (4) TP53.5x44.4969x0.4688 5062275.00 5662150.00 0.894 0.00 5662150.00 0.000 
                  

 
 

 Pole Shear Design Data    
 
Section 

No. 
Elevation 

 
ft 

Size 
 

Actual 
Vu 

lb 

Vn 

 
lb 

Ratio 
Vu 

Vn 

Actual 
Tu 

lb-ft 

Tn 

 
lb-ft 

Ratio 
Tu 

Tn 
L1 169.663 - 

117.681 (1) 
TP29.6996x18x0.25 27144.50 402659.00 0.067 1411.45 1009491.67 0.001 

L2 117.681 - 
74.1134 (2) 

TP38.8186x28.2513x0.375 34417.40 789601.00 0.044 497.65 2587916.67 0.000 

L3 74.1134 - 
34.616 (3) 

TP46.7708x36.885x0.4375 38242.50 1110940.00 0.034 495.22 4391058.33 0.000 

L4 34.616 - 0 (4) TP53.5x44.4969x0.4688 41486.60 1404770.00 0.030 494.43 6552966.67 0.000 
                  

 
 
 

 Pole Interaction Design Data    
 
Section 

No. 
Elevation 

 
ft 

Ratio 
Pu 

Pn 

Ratio 
Mux 

Mnx 

Ratio 
Muy 

Mny 

Ratio 
Vu 

Vn 

Ratio 
Tu 

Tn 

Comb. 
Stress 
Ratio 

Allow. 
Stress 
Ratio 

Criteria 

L1 169.663 - 
117.681 (1) 

0.015 0.771 0.000 0.067 0.001 0.791   1.050 4.8.2  

L2 117.681 - 
74.1134 (2) 

0.013 0.858 0.000 0.044 0.000 0.873   1.050 4.8.2  

L3 74.1134 - 
34.616 (3) 

0.012 0.867 0.000 0.034 0.000 0.881   1.050 4.8.2  

L4 34.616 - 0 (4) 0.013 0.894 0.000 0.030 0.000 0.908   1.050 4.8.2  
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Vertical Structures, Inc.  
309 Spangler Drive, Suite E 

Project 

Vertical Structures Job No. 2020-003-053 
Date 
11:42:21 06/30/20  

Richmond, KY 40475 
Phone: (859) 624-8360 
FAX: (859) 624-8369 

Client 
Crown Castle 

Designed by 
Andrew Mathis 

 Section Capacity Table 
 

Section 
No. 

Elevation 
ft 

Component 
Type 

Size Critical
Element 

P 
lb 

øPallow 

lb 
% 

Capacity 
Pass 
Fail 

L1 169.663 - 
117.681 

Pole TP29.6996x18x0.25 1 -20735.00 1409309.94 75.3 Pass 

L2 117.681 - 
74.1134 

Pole TP38.8186x28.2513x0.375 2 -33298.90 2763599.87 83.1 Pass 

L3 74.1134 - 34.616 Pole TP46.7708x36.885x0.4375 3 -46201.30 3888286.32 83.9 Pass 
L4 34.616 - 0 Pole TP53.5x44.4969x0.4688 4 -63029.10 4916708.78 86.5 Pass 

              Summary   
            Pole (L4) 86.5 Pass 
      RATING = 86.5 Pass 

 
 
 
 
                                                           
 Program Version 8.0.5.0 - 11/28/2018 File://VNAS1/Active Jobs/2020 Jobs/2020-003/2020-003-053/Ira Stein Property, KS/TNX/877796.eri 



 June 30, 2020 
169.663 Ft Monopole Tower Structural Analysis CCI BU No 877796 
Project Number 2020-003-053, Order 525482, Revision 0 Page 8 

tnxTower Report - version 8.0.5.0 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

BASE LEVEL DRAWING 
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ADDITIONAL CALCULATIONS 



Monopole Base Plate Connection

*TIA-222-H Section 15.5 Applied

#VALUE!

Anchor Rod Data Anchor Rod Summary (units of kips, kip-in)

(20) 2-1/4" ø bolts (A615-75 N; Fy=75 ksi, Fu=100 ksi) on 62" BC             Pu_c = 199.01 φPn_c = 268.39 Stress Rating

        Anchor Spacing: 6 in             Vu = 2.07 φVn = 120.77 70.6%

             Mu = n/a φMn = n/a Pass

Base Plate Data

67.5" OD x 2.5" Plate (A871-60; Fy=60 ksi, Fu=75 ksi) Base Plate Summary  

 Max Stress (ksi): 45.73 (Flexural)

Stiffener Data Allowable Stress (ksi): 54  

N/A Stress Rating: 80.7% Pass

 

Pole Data

53.5" x 0.46875" 12-sided pole (A572-65; Fy=65 ksi, Fu=80 ksi)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Analysis ResultsConnection Properties

Iar (in) 0.75

Moment (kip-ft) 5062.27

Axial Force (kips) 63.06

Shear Force (kips) 41.44

Moment (kip-ft) 

Axial Force (kips) 

Shear Force (kips) 

0.00

BU # 877796

Applied Loads

Site Name Ira Stein Property, KS

Order # 525482, Rev. 0

Analysis Considerations

Site Info

TIA-222 Revision H

Grout Considered: No

63.06

41.44

Adjusted Pole Reactions

CCIplate - version 3.6.1 Analysis Date: 6/30/2020



TIA-222 Revison: Check Pier Capacity only at location of Max Moment? No

Tower Type:

Soil Lateral Check Compression Uplift

Comp. Uplift 9.95 -

5062.274 18.82 -

63.062 5440.78 -

41.436 6.7% -

Soil Vertical Check Compression Uplift

2078.16 -

4 ksi 288.63 -

60 ksi 256.31 -

2366.80 -

319.37 -

36 ft 12.9% -
1 ft Reinforced Concrete Check Compression Uplift

10.25 -

5439.48 -

7 ft 6755.20 -

21 76.7% -

11
3 in

5

6

11

70.25 in

7 ft

21

11

3 in

5

*Rating per TIA-222-H Section 15.5

N/A # of Layers 4

FALSE 1 0 3.5 3.5 121 150 0.000 0.000 0.00 0.00

FALSE 2 3.5 6.5 3 121 150 1.025 0.564 0.564 0.00 0.00

FALSE 3 6.5 8 1.5 109 150 0.825 0.454 0.454 0.00 0.00

FALSE 4 8 36 28 140 150 10 4.500 4.500 10

Check Limitation

Apply TIA-222-H Section 15.5:

Pier Diameter

Rebar Quantity

Rebar Size

Rebar Size

Rebar Cage Diameter

Rebar Strength, Fy:
End Bearing (kips)

Total Capacity (kips)
Axial (kips)

Rebar Quantity

Clear Cover to Ties

Tie Size

Depth
Ext. Above Grade

Pier Diameter

Critical Depth (ft from TOC)
Critical Moment (kip-ft)

Critical Moment Capacity
Rating*

Pier Section 1

From 1' above grade to 23.4' below grade

Pier Section 2

From 23.4' below grade to 36' below grade

Rebar Size
Clear Cover to Ties

Tie Size

Rebar Quantity

Rating*

Calculated 

Ultimate Skin 

Friction Uplift     

(ksf)

Calculated 

Ultimate Skin 

Friction Comp               

(ksf)

Layer
Top          

(ft)

Bottom     

(ft)

Thickness     

(ft)

Ultimate Skin 

Friction Comp 

Override               

(ksf)

Groundwater Depth

Soil Profile

Soil Type
SPT Blow 

Count

Ult. Gross  

Bearing 

Capacity    

(ksf)

γsoil 

(pcf)

γconcrete  

(pcf)

Cohesion    

(ksf)

Angle of 

Friction 

(degrees)

Analysis Results

Drilled Pier Foundation

BU # :

Site Name:

Order Number:

Monopole

Applied Loads

Material Properties

Pier Design Data

H

877796

Ira Stein Property, KS

525482, Rev. 0

Moment (kip-ft)

Axial Force (kips)

Shear Force (kips)

Concrete Strength, f'c:

Dv=0 (ft from TOC)
Soil Safety Factor

Max Moment (kip-ft)
Rating*

Skin Friction (kips)

Weight of Concrete (kips)

12.9%

76.7%
Soil Interaction Rating*

Structural Foundation Rating*

Cohesive

Cohesive

N/A

Cohesionless

Cohesive

Ultimate Skin 

Friction Uplift 

Override (ksf)

Rebar & Pier Options

Embedded Pole Inputs

Belled Pier Inputs

Version 3.0.0



ASCE 7 Hazards Report
Address:
No Address at This 
Location

Standard: ASCE/SEI 7-10

Risk Category: II

Soil Class: B - Rock

Elevation: 971.36 ft (NAVD 88)

Latitude:
Longitude:

38.885778

-94.6465

Wind

Results: 

Data Source: 

Date Accessed: 

Wind Speed: 115 Vmph

10-year MRI 76 Vmph

25-year MRI 84 Vmph

50-year MRI 90 Vmph

100-year MRI 96 Vmph

ASCE/SEI 7-10, Fig. 26.5-1A and Figs. CC-1–CC-4, incorporating errata of 
March 12, 2014

Mon Jun 29 2020

Value provided is 3-second gust wind speeds at 33 ft above ground for Exposure C Category, based on linear 
interpolation between contours. Wind speeds are interpolated in accordance with the 7-10 Standard. Wind speeds 
correspond to approximately a 7% probability of exceedance in 50 years (annual exceedance probability = 
0.00143, MRI = 700 years).

Site is not in a hurricane-prone region as defined in ASCE/SEI 7-10 Section 26.2.

Mountainous terrain, gorges, ocean promontories, and special wind regions should be examined for unusual wind 
conditions.

Page 1 of 3https://asce7hazardtool.online/ Mon Jun 29 2020

https://asce7hazardtool.online/


SS : 0.112

S1 : 0.065

Fa : 1

Fv : 1

SMS : 0.112

SM1 : 0.065

SDS : 0.075

SD1 : 0.043

TL : 12

PGA : 0.054

PGA M : 0.054

FPGA : 1

Ie : 1

Design Response Spectrum

S  (g) vs T(s)a

MCE   Response SpectrumR

S  (g) vs T(s)a

Seismic

Site Soil Class: 

Results: 

Seismic Design Category

B - Rock

A

Data Accessed: 

Date Source: 

Mon Jun 29 2020
USGS Seismic Design Maps based on ASCE/SEI 7-10, incorporating 
Supplement 1 and errata of March 31, 2013, and ASCE/SEI 7-10 Table 1.5-2. 
Additional data for site-specific ground motion procedures in accordance with 
ASCE/SEI 7-10 Ch. 21 are available from USGS.

Page 2 of 3https://asce7hazardtool.online/ Mon Jun 29 2020

https://asce7hazardtool.online/


Ice

Results: 

Data Source: 

Date Accessed: 

Ice Thickness: 1.00 in.

Concurrent Temperature: 5 F

Gust Speed: 40 mph

Standard ASCE/SEI 7-10, Figs. 10-2 through 10-8

Mon Jun 29 2020

Ice thicknesses on structures in exposed locations at elevations higher than the surrounding terrain and in valleys 
and gorges may exceed the mapped values.

Values provided are equivalent radial ice thicknesses due to freezing rain with concurrent 3-second gust speeds, 
for a 50-year mean recurrence interval, and temperatures concurrent with ice thicknesses due to freezing rain. 
Thicknesses for ice accretions caused by other sources shall be obtained from local meteorological studies. Ice 
thicknesses in exposed locations at elevations higher than the surrounding terrain and in valleys and gorges may 
exceed the mapped values.

The ASCE 7 Hazard Tool is provided for your convenience, for informational purposes only, and is provided “as is” and without warranties of 
any kind. The location data included herein has been obtained from information developed, produced, and maintained by third party providers; 
or has been extrapolated from maps incorporated in the ASCE 7 standard. While ASCE has made every effort to use data obtained from 
reliable sources or methodologies, ASCE does not make any representations or warranties as to the accuracy, completeness, reliability, 
currency, or quality of any data provided herein. Any third-party links provided by this Tool should not be construed as an endorsement, 
affiliation, relationship, or sponsorship of such third-party content by or from ASCE.

ASCE does not intend, nor should anyone interpret, the results provided by this Tool to replace the sound judgment of a competent 
professional, having knowledge and experience in the appropriate field(s) of practice, nor to substitute for the standard of care required of such 
professionals in interpreting and applying the contents of this Tool or the ASCE 7 standard.

In using this Tool, you expressly assume all risks associated with your use. Under no circumstances shall ASCE or its officers, directors, 
employees, members, affiliates, or agents be liable to you or any other person for any direct, indirect, special, incidental, or consequential 
damages arising from or related to your use of, or reliance on, the Tool or any information obtained therein. To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, you agree to release and hold harmless ASCE from any and all liability of any nature arising out of or resulting from any use of data 
provided by the ASCE 7 Hazard Tool.

Page 3 of 3https://asce7hazardtool.online/ Mon Jun 29 2020

https://asce7hazardtool.online/




















































City of Leawood Governing Body Staff Report 

MEETING DATE:   August 17, 2020 
REPORT WRITTEN:  July 30, 2020 

LEAWOOD FIRE STATION #1 & PARK – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY PLAT & 
FINAL PLAT – LOCATED SOUTH OF 96TH STREET AND EAST OF LEE BOULEVARD – CASE 56-20 

*PUBLIC HEARING*

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:   
Planning Commission recommends the Governing Body approval of CASE 56-20, Leawood Fire Station #1– 
Request for a Preliminary Plat & Final Plat, subject to the following stipulations. 

1. This approval is limited to a Preliminary & Final Plat combining five lots (Lots 115, 116, 117, 118, and
119) within Leawood Estates residential subdivision into one lot.

2. In addition to the stipulations listed in the report, the developer/property owner agrees to abide by all
ordinances of the City of Leawood including the Leawood Development Ordinance, unless a deviation
has been granted, and to execute a statement acknowledgement in writing that they agree to stipulations
one through two.

APPLICANT: 

 The applicant and engineer is Judd Claussen with Phelps Engineering, Inc.

 The properties are owned by The City of Leawood.

REQUEST: 

 The applicant is requesting approval of a Preliminary & Final Plat to combine five lots (Lots 115, 116,
117, 118, and 119) within Leawood Estates residential subdivision into one lot.

ZONING: 

 The property is currently zoned R-1 (Planned Single Family Low Density Residential (15,000 Sq. Feet
per Dwelling)).

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

 The Comprehensive Plan designates this property as Public and Open Space - Public.

INTERACT MEETING:  

 Meeting was held on Wednesday, July 15th at 6:00 pm. (See attached minutes and sign-in)

SIGNAGE:  

 No signage is proposed with this application
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LOCATION: 

SURROUNDING ZONING:  

 North To the north is single family residential, Leawood Estates zoned RP-1 (Planned Single 
Family Residential District) (12,000 Sq. Feet per Dwelling)). 

 South To the south, is single family residential, Leawood Estates zoned RP-1. 

 East To the east, is single family residential, Leawood Estates zoned RP-1. 

 West To the west, across Lee Boulevard, is single family residential, Leawood Estates zoned 
RP-1. 

SITE PLAN COMMENTS: 

 The site is located within the Leawood Estates residential subdivision.

 Existing fire station #1 is located on lot 116, former Leawood City Hall is located on lot 117, and a Cellular
Tower is located on lot 118.

FINAL PLAT: 

 The applicant is proposing to replat lots 115, 116, 117, 118, and 119, removing the lot lines that bisect the
existing property, creating one contiguous lot.

 The Final Plat contains the following: 3.691 Acres / 160,767 Sq. ft.

EASEMENTS 
10’ Utility Easement Back Lots 115-119, northern lot 115, between lots 118 & 119 

BULK REGULATIONS: 

 The following table outlines the required and provided regulations for the project:
Criteria Required Provided Compliance 

Front Setback 
Side Setback 
Rear Setback 

35’ 
15’ 
30’ 

35’ 
15’ 
30’ 

Complies 
Complies 
Complies 
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City Planner Grant Lang made the following presentation: 

Mr. Lang:  This is Case 56-20 – Leawood Fire Station #1 & Park. The applicant is 

requesting approval of a Revised Final Plat to combine Lot Nos. 15-19 within the 

Leawood Estates Residential subdivision into one lot. This application is limited to the 

re-platting of five lots into one lot and does not include rezoning or design for the 

property. This process will allow for the removal of existing interior lot lines and the 

adjoining setbacks. The existing R-1 zoning will remain with this application. This is the 

first step in a multi-step process that the project will have to undertake. Further, they will 

be required to submit a Preliminary and Final Plan. Once the design process starts for the 

site, an additional Public Hearing and Interact Meeting will be required. The application 

does meet all requirements per the LDO (Leawood Development Ordinance), and staff 

recommends approval of Case 56-20 with the stipulations listed in the Staff Report. I’ll 

stand by to answer any questions.  

Chairman Elkins:  Thank you, Mr. Lang. Are there questions? 

Comm. Coleman:  What is the purpose of combining the five lots together? 

Mr. Lang:  At this point, we don’t have a plan; it is just clerical work to get all the city 

property into one large lot.  

Comm. Coleman:  Is there a reason to get it all into one block? 

Mr. Lang:  I believe they would like to place an additional Fire Station on the new 

property after removing the old one, but at this point, we don’t have that information. 

Comm. Coleman:  I was looking at the diagram in the Staff Report. As I understand, the 

existing Fire Station looks like it’s primarily on Lot 2 and a little bit on Lot 1. Lot 3 

includes the old City Hall. Lot 4 is vacant, and it used to hold the cell phone tower. 

Mr. Lang:  And the old Police Station. 

Comm. Coleman:  And then is it an existing home on Lot 5? 

Mr. Lang:  There was a home on the property. The city has acquired it, and the home is 

gone. 

Comm. Hoyt:  There are numerous comments of concern from neighbors. It seems like 

the primary concern is lack of a plan at this point for what is going to be done on the 

property and a questioning of the process and if this is typical. I wonder if you could 

reflect a bit on the sequence of steps and if this is a standard practice to ask for the re-

platting before there are any plans whatsoever. 

Mr. Lang:  Any property owner within the City of Leawood is allowed to re-plat property 

at any point in time as long as it follows the LDO. Nowhere in that ordinance does it state 
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that a plan is required. We saw this with the recent Whitehorse residential subdivision. 

They combined two lots into one without a plan.  

Comm. Hoyt:  Did we have a vague notion of what they would do with that property? I’m 

trying to figure out if this is in the range of what has typically been done in the past or if 

this is somehow different.  

Mr. Lang:  It certainly is allowed within the LDO. With the Whitehorse case, there was 

mention of a pool. At that point, we were not supportive of developing on proper lines. 

This is just clearing the way for future development. 

Comm. McGurren:  Is it fair to say that, in the documentation from the Interact Meeting, 

one of the major concerns was related to the park and whether the neighbors wanted a 

park. I was on the Parks and Recreation Board recently, and my recollection was that this 

subject had an Interact Meeting a long time ago, and there was overwhelming support for 

a potential park. They sought perspective on the type of park. I was surprised to read that 

this meeting unfolded a perception of potential park. Is there anything that can be said 

about that comparison from before to now? 

Mr. Lang:  I think the reason it was called a park in this instance is it was reflecting what 

was on the Comprehensive Plan, which does show it as open green space for public use. 

If opinions changed for the residents, it would be a great question to ask them. 

Comm. Block:  You indicated this is a housekeeping measure. I think there was reference 

to it in the Interact Meeting from those who represented the city from the engineering 

company. From a design perspective, why is this step necessary? Does it affect their 

ability to design? 

Mr. Lang:  Without having a plan in front of me, I would assume if they are left with the 

individual properties, they would have to go up instead of out because they’re not going 

to be allowed to develop on the property lines. Those property lines also come with a 15’ 

setback. This would help with capacity and allow them to develop. The neighborhood is 

not supportive of a two-story building. This would satisfy that need. 

Comm. Block:  From a cost perspective, does not having this approval and then trying to 

design, having to change designs down the road because there is movement with the lots? 

Mr. Lang:  I’m not sure how much it would impact a cost-related activity. All we know is 

they want to re-plat and satisfy that need, clearing the way so they know what they can 

design. Now, they have limitations. 

Comm. Block:  It would not change any of the setbacks on the perimeter of all of the 

parcels, correct? They’re not going to be able to get any of this any closer to the exterior 

sides? 
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Mr. Lang:  That is correct; it only impacts the interior lines. This is still going to be zoned 

R-1. The setbacks will stay they same as they are now.  

 

Comm. Block:  Would this need to be rezoned at some point to put the Fire Station back 

on there? 

 

Mr. Lang:  It doesn’t need to be rezoned, as the use is allowed. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  Are there other questions? What impact will the re-platting have on the 

zoning? 

 

Mr. Lang:  The zoning isn’t a part of this application, so it wouldn’t have any impact at 

all. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  If, for some reason, there is a desire or need to rezone, what would the 

city have to do in order to accomplish that? 

 

Mr. Lang:  The city would have to fill out an application, and then we would have an 

Interact Meeting.  

 

Chairman Elkins:  It would come back to the Planning Commission, correct? 

 

Mr. Lang:  Yes, it would. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  It would have a Public Hearing for the rezoning, correct? 

 

Mr. Lang:  Yes. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  We would then have to make a decision to recommend it to Governing 

Body for approval. 

 

Mr. Lang:  Correct. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  What impact will the proposed re-platting have on any deed 

restrictions on the five lots that are subject to be re-platted? 

 

Mr. Lang:  My basic understanding is the deed restrictions run with the land. Legal may 

have more to say about that.  

 

Chairman Elkins:  For my own edification, what are the standards we should be applying 

to make a determination whether we should recommend re-platting to Governing Body/ 

In certain circumstances, we have Golden Criteria. I’m not suggesting they apply here, 

but could you give some guidance on the standard we should be applying? 

 

Mr. Lang:  I might pass that off to Richard Coleman. 
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Mr. Coleman: You want to make sure that all the property lines, description of plat, any 

easements or other encumbrances on the property are known. That would be of interest to 

Governing Body. The platting has no effect on deed restrictions on the lot that the city 

bought. I know that was a question from a number of the residents. This is the normal 

process for developers. Often, there are multiple pieces of property for a development, so 

the first step is platting the property. Then that takes care of a number of issues that may 

arise when surveyors and engineers research the property. As was alluded to before, we 

don’t allow buildings to be built on property lines. We have interior setback requirements 

for interior property lines. By removing this, it allows whoever the city chooses to do the 

design to proceed knowing where the setbacks are, where the restrictions are, and not 

have those interior lot lines. We don’t know the final layout, but there will be 

opportunities for the public to participate throughout the process.  

 

Chairman Elkins:  Thank you. Mr. Lang, in the event that the city desires to develop part 

of the space for a public park or green space, what would the process be for the city? 

 

Mr. Lang:  I believe at that point, it would have to be rezoned to Recreational. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  Assuming that goes through the same process, what about the plan for 

the park itself?  

 

Mr. Lang:  It would follow the same process of Preliminary and Final Plans, including 

Public Hearings as well.  

 

Chairman Elkins:  There has been a lot of conversation about the Fire Station. If and 

when such a plan is proposed to be executed, what is the process for that proposal? 

 

Mr. Lang:  There would be an Interact Meeting with a Public Hearing, going through 

Planning Commission and Governing Body.  

 

Comm. Block:  As a follow-up, the 1952 Covenants and Restrictions, referenced in one 

of these letters, is a legal matter that is not part of the LDO and not something Planning 

Commission and City Council would consider. Is that correct? 

 

Mr. Coleman:  The deed restriction, as Mr. Lang said, runs with the land. One of the 

encumbrances on the property are things the architect and engineer have to work around. 

There are sometimes deed restrictions on commercial property, too; it depends on what 

the original owner intended. 

 

Comm. Block:  We’re not going to have to worry about it, but it’s the northernmost and 

southernmost properties that have those? 

 

Mr. Coleman:  I believe it’s the southernmost property only. It’s the property that had a 

house on it. This gives more room for development and more room between existing 

homes. 
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Chairman Elkins:  Thank you. Other questions? 

 

Comm. Peterson:  In the Interact Meeting, one of the participants – Katy Yeller – 

referenced a Susan’s Lot. Is that the southernmost property? 

 

Mr. Coleman:  I believe it is.  

 

Comm. Peterson:  How did the city come to acquire that? 

 

Mr. Coleman:  They purchased it. 

 

Comm. Peterson:  It wasn’t gifted or anything like that? 

 

Mr. Coleman:  No, it was not gifted.  

 

Chairman Elkins:  Thank you. If there are no further questions for staff, I’ll open the 

Public Hearing. I would note that seven members of the community have registered to 

speak. We’ll permit four minutes for each speaker. I know from the reading I’ve done of 

the notes from the Interact Meeting that it is possible that a number of the residents who 

wish to be heard may have questions for staff. I will note that this is not an interactive 

sort of activity, but I would ask Mr. Lang to keep track of the questions, and the city will 

have an opportunity to respond following the closing of the Public Hearing. In our 

normal course of events, the applicant is given an opportunity to respond to staff before 

the Public Hearing is convened. In this case, it is a bit unusual because the city is also the 

applicant. Is there anyone from the city who wishes to be heard as applicant as contrasted 

from the planning staff? 

 

Brian Scovill, City Engineer, made the following comments: 

 

Mr. Scovill:  We do have our consultant engineer, Judd with Phelps Engineering, on the 

Zoom call. He is available to assist with questions. If he has comments he feel would be 

appropriate to add to the record, he may do that. 

 

Judd Claussen, Phelps Engineering, 1270 N. Winchester, Olathe, KS, appeared before the 

Planning Commission and made the following comments: 

 

Mr. Claussen:  We were retained by the city to prepare the technical documents for the 

Preliminary and Final Plat. Many of the comments and remarks I was going to make 

tonight have been discussed already, so I’ll be brief. Brian and I participated in the 

Interact Meeting on July 15th. The pages of notes provided to you were recordings of 

those conversations. We tried our best to answer the questions we could, and there were 

several questions relating to the plan of the future Fire Station, future possible park, and 

other types of future activities that may go on, on that site that really weren’t part of this 

application that we were not able to answer. With that, I’ll stand for any technical 

questions you may have on the plat. 
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Comm. Block:  When we’ve seen an issue where the two sides are not on the same page, 

they’ve worked together behind the scenes. In light of all these comments that are in our 

packet, does the city want to do a different process here, even though it sounds like this is 

the normal process? Has there been effort to reach out, other than the Interact Meeting? 

When an attorney represents a developer, those conversations might happen. 

 

Mr. Scovill:  I believe those conversations would happen during the design phase. Right 

now, we’re in the re-platting phase, which tends to be more of a formality of creating one 

solid lot. That is where we are now. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  With that, we will move on to the Public Hearing. Again, comments 

will be limited to four minutes. I will advise you when you’re at one minute. As I 

indicated, I’m anticipating as a result of some of the dialogue that there will be questions. 

Staff will have an opportunity to respond, and then we’ll move to consideration. 

 

Public Hearing 

Kerry Shaw, 9618 High Drive, appeared before the Planning Commission and made the 

following comments: 

 

Mr. Shaw:  I live directly east of 9619, which is the address of the home that was 

purchased by the city. What I would like to do first is thank Brian Scovill, Judd Claussen, 

Grant Lang, and Scott Lambers because each of them has sat and listened to me and 

others, expressing our concern. What we’re asking respectfully for the Planning 

Commission to do is reject this plat request. There is no complete or clear plan on what is 

going to happen with this property. What we’re going to have to live with is whatever 

happens in a piecemeal fashion where these five lots get put together. The very first thing 

that is going to occur is while the internal setback lines change, it doesn’t affect our 

homes to the east; it affects the homes to the south and north because the setback changes 

from having a residential lot. Then, the north at 9605 is actually a separate parcel that the 

Kroc brothers left to keep a distance from the homes on 96th Street. If you read the deeds 

and restrictions from 1952, you’ll find a bunch of worthwhile information related to this. 

We’re asking you to reject it or table it until there is a clear plan for what is going to 

happen. While it was said earlier that there was universal approval for a park, no one 

asked the homeowners at 9610, 9612, 9614, 9618, or 9620 High Drive or 9625 Lee. None 

of this was going on when they were doing their original discussions on the Fire Station. 

Now, the status quo has changed because a residential lot has been purchased. 

Eliminating the setbacks and the lines will significantly impact Katherine Geller’s house 

at 9625 Lee Boulevard. We have no objection to a one-story Fire Station. Everybody 

wants it. People were disappointed when the Police Department left. We were hoping that 

a precinct would be maintained in North Leawood. What we’ve already seen is people 

camping in the trees. The morning after that occurred, the Police Department arrived at 

our door to find out if we were camping in our back yard. We’ve already seen 

backpackers and people walking their dogs back there. Of course, every home along this 

has dogs, and the dogs go running at the fence because there’s an intruder. The park 

concept is not something we are interested in. What we’re interested in is a one-story Fire 

Station and leaving City Hall or relocating City Hall onto the new lot. In talking with 
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Scott, to get the design they have right now on the site, they need 35 feet. We don’t have 

a problem with a variance; just leave the lot as it was. Do the screening, give the variance 

so they can have their driveway. 100% of the people support the Fire Station; it is just a 

matter of a park on Lee Boulevard that will create traffic issues, safety issues, and a 

whole bunch of volume. Ideas being tossed around include turning the old Fire Station 

into a pavilion, a water park, and a train park. This is not like there’s a street, a park, and 

a street separating the neighbors; it is back yards butting up to this property. The Kroc 

brothers left that property residential. They agreed to the Fire Station. They weren’t 

around when the Police Department came, and they agreed to City Hall. There are deeds 

and restrictions. It is currently zoned Residential. This is different than Whitehorse. This 

is not a homeowner requesting a lot line change so they can put in a pool. This is the city 

asking for five lots to be put together into one spot. It is a very different situation, so 

we’re asking the city to reject or table this until the city comes forward with a better plan 

or clearer plan that buys in to all the people behind the property and across the street from 

the property because we’re the ones affected. All the rest of the people that came and 

commented that they’re upset about a park don’t have to live across the street from it or 

behind it. With that, I’ll stand down. We respectfully ask you to reject or table this until a 

later date when there’s a better plan. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  Thank you, Mr. Shaw; we appreciate your comments. Is Charlotte Saw 

online? 

 

Mr. Shaw:  She can’t get her computer to work, so go to the next one. 

 

JoLynn Hobbs, President of Leawood Homes Association, appeared before the Planning 

Commission and made the following comments: 

 

Ms. Hobbs:  I’m also a member of the Leawood Parks and Recreation Advisory Board. 

I’m just joining to be aware of what’s going on in our neighborhood. I was also very 

involved in the Brook Beatty Park, located between 83rd and 95th on Lee Boulevard. I’m 

just joining to be aware of what’s going on in our neighborhood. Thank you. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  Thank you; we appreciate your comments. Is Mike Faulkner on the 

line? We’ll go to the next on the docket and see if he joins us later. 

 

John McElroy, 2327 W. 96th Street, appeared before the Planning Commission and made 

the following comments: 

 

Mr. McElroy:  I live directly to the north of the Fire Station, right behind the community 

garden. I think that Mr. Shaw did a fantastic job of explaining our concerns. I don’t 

pretend to speak for my neighbors or anything else, but this does directly affect me. I 

trust the committee to make the right decision, whatever that is, but I want to make sure 

there is an allotment for landscaping and appropriate border, whether that’s fencing or 

whatever that might be, or maybe there’s an allotment given to the residents to build their 

own border or landscaping to block whatever is built. I think it would make much more 

sense to have this conversation when we know what the plan is. That’s why I think that 
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Mr. Shaw stated very well that, without having a real plan, it’s hard to give our approval 

unconditionally. I do trust the committee; I just ask that whatever design is presented, 

there is an allotment for appropriate borders and landscaping. I think that’s all I wanted to 

voice my concern over. This is the first time I heard about the splash park, which is 

maybe slightly concerning. When I think about the fact that the Leawood Park is one mile 

down the road with a splash park, I’m not exactly sure why we want to spend our tax 

dollars building a splash park. I’m open to listen. Once there’s a plan, I will attend the 

Interact Meeting, which is probably more appropriate. With that said, I’ll yield the rest of 

my time. 

 

Chairman Elkins: Catherine Geller is on the line, but it appears we can’t hear her, even 

though it says she is not muted. 

 

Unidentified Speaker:  I believe the microphone is not set up correctly with Zoom. (Gives 

direction on setting up the microphone)  

 

Chairman Elkins:  Ms. Geller, it appears this isn’t working. If you want to try to call in, 

we’ll come back to you. Thank you so much. I’m sorry our technology is challenging 

tonight. 

 

Ellen Brown, 9614 High Drive, appeared before the Planning Commission and made the 

following comments: 

 

Ms. Brown:  I will just echo everything that Kerry Shaw said. We understand that there’s 

going to be a Fire Station behind us. They’ve talked about that since before we bought 

our house. We’re all fine with it. As far as a park goes, I thought the comment about 

neighbors being gung-ho about a park was interesting because since we’ve moved here, 

no one has ever asked us if we wanted a park. The first meeting we attended that we 

heard about a park asked what kind of park we wanted. It was never a question of 

wanting a park in our back yard, which we do not. I also agree with Kerry that it’s one 

thing to have a backdoor neighbor; it’s another thing to have complete strangers walking 

along your fence line in your back yard, not knowing who they are or what they’re there 

for. That’s very concerning. The biggest question is I’m trying to understand why, if 

there is no plan, how they know for sure that they need more space. That is all I have. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  Thank you. Ms. Geller, are you able to hear us? 

 

Catherine Geller, appeared before the Planning Commission and made the following 

comments: 

 

Ms. Geller:  I want to thank all of you for taking the time to do this and Kerry for all he 

has done, along with all of my neighbors. I do have the house that is directly south of 

9619 Lee Boulevard, the house that was taken down. My driveway, my front walk, and 

back yard face directly north to whatever would be built at that lot. Part of the confusion 

is that we don’t know what the city might plan for that lot, whether it would impose on 

our privacy and noise and change the character of the neighborhood. A green space is 
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fine with all of us. I don’t think anyone is opposed to a variance filed by the city for its 

own encroaching up to 10 feet with the Fire Station. As I understand from Mr. Lambers, 

they only need to come within 10 feet of 9619 Lee Boulevard. I don’t think that 10 feet 

on the north side of that would impinge upon anyone with the one-story Fire Station. It 

could be that I will never be able to go into my garage privately again or entertain in my 

yard privately again, depending on what the city does with this lot. Several issues have 

not been addressed. Is this a needed joinder, or will the variance satisfy the requirement 

for the Fire Station to come within 10 feet of what I refer to as Susan’s Lot? Is there a 

less restrictive means to accomplish the same goal as a variance? Is there a possibility of 

harm in having joinder at this point before some parameters and clarity are given as to 

what is to occur? Is there supposed to be a park where the old Fire Station is? Are they 

envisioning a museum or a quiet place that is not including parking lots and strangers 

looking into my home, my back yard, my garage? No one would want a house taken from 

next door to them and have their privacy destroyed. It not only destroys the land; it 

destroys your life. I think we are all concerned. The harm is the R-1 zoning that these 

plats are all zoned begs the question if we have a residential lot next to us and the zoning 

needs to change on a residential lot next to us at this time, will it still have to change in 

the future? If, by joinder, the vote that is required of the neighbors to do that if 

circumvented because, obviously, the Fire Station is going to take the priority and all of 

the plats joined will have to have the same zoning now, where at this particular point, 

they could be zoned differently, in effect, we will not have much say over what happens 

according to the current requirements. That is a concern. Is there even a possibility of 

harm in joinder, and is it the least-restrictive means to ensure that the Fire Station plans 

can go forward, which we all want, and that they can come within 10 feet of Susan’s lot, 

which is not an issue with me because there happens to be a forced border of landscaping 

at this particular time? What we don’t know is if that landscape border will be taken 

down so that all of the fire trucks will come within our vision. We just don’t know 

anything; I guess that’s just the bottom line. There is a possibility of harm at having 

joinder at this part, and it does not appear necessary from anything that was said, 

particularly when a variance would satisfy any existing need for the Fire Station plans to 

proceed. Is the vote of the neighbors, as required at this time prior to any rezoning of the 

lot next to me, still allowed with respect to a specific plat, separate from the other plats? 

The other plats are already used for public uses. Will the restrictions, deeds, and zoning 

of this plat be allowed to differ from the other plats? If not, then a plan needs to be set 

forth with just parameters. I’m not saying it needs every specific thing, but parameters of 

what is envisioned for this lot. Is the use going to be quiet and in character of the land, as 

a green space would be or the historic courthouse, or is it going to be a use that invades 

our privacy and allows people to look into my yard when I’m in my garage and affect the 

security and living of my family? I think you can probably all put yourself in that spot. 

It’s a curios spot to be in, for sure, but the potential harm outweighs any need for a 

joinder at this point when a variance would suffice, and parameters are needed. 

 

Chairman Elkins: Thank you; we appreciate your comments. I’ll go back to Ms. Shaw. 

Do you care to be heard? Sounds like not. I think I saw something that indicated that Mr. 

Faulkner was away from the city, but I wanted to make sure he has the opportunity in 
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case he called in from wherever he is. If not, is there anyone else who wishes to be heard 

on Case 56-20? If not, do I hear a motion? 

 

A motion to close the Public Hearing was made by Coleman; seconded by Block. 

Motion carried with a unanimous roll-call vote of 8-0. For: McGurren, Peterson, 

Hoyt, Belzer, Hunter, Coleman, Block, and Stevens. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  Does anyone from planning staff or city staff have comments, 

particularly with respect to the question about rezoning? 

 

Mr. Lang:  Rezoning isn’t part of this application at this time, so we’re just focusing on 

the re-platting. The Fire Station would be allowed in R-1 as it currently is. As far as any 

of the deed restrictions go, reflecting what Director Coleman said, it would be something 

the applicant and the HOA would have to work out as far as what they would be 

restricted on.  

 

Chairman Elkins:  The bottom line for me is if the citizens who spoke tonight will have a 

chance to have their views heard once a plan is actually proposed by the city for whatever 

use the city desire for the property. 

 

Mr. Lang:  Yes, they will absolutely have an Interact Meeting, and they’ll have a chance 

at the Planning Commission during the Public Hearing.  

 

Chairman Elkins:  So, they’ll have another opportunity at a Public Hearing to give us 

their thoughts when they see what plan is actually proposed. 

 

Mr. Lang:  Absolutely. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  Other questions? 

 

Comm. Block:  If this were to be rezoned in the future, would the rezoning have to run 

with the plat lines? Is there even a scenario where, if all these properties are combined 

into one as is before us, and it’s decided down the road that the southern portion of this 

property is to become a park, it would have to be rezoned Recreation? It couldn’t be a 

park and be R-1, correct? 

 

Mr. Coleman:  A public park is a permitted use in an R-1 zoning district. It wouldn’t need 

to be rezoned. There will be a public planning process where all the neighbors and 

citizens who he an interest in whatever occurs here will be heard. The city hasn’t gotten 

to that stage yet, but it will be coming up. My understanding is the city is going to hire an 

engineer and architect to design the Fire Station and plan for the property. At that time, 

everybody will have a chance to provide input on what should occur on this property. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  You came across a little garbled on a key point. Is a public park use 

appropriate in a district zoned R-1? 
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Mr. Coleman:  Public uses are permitted uses in R-1 zoning districts. That’s why schools 

are allowed in R-1 zoning, and so are all public properties. That’s why the Fire Station 

was there before; that’s why the Police Station was there before. There is no rezoning 

required, but there will be a Public Hearing and public planning process so everyone has 

a chance to give their input. 

 

Comm. McGurren:  Richard, it seems to me, to the point made earlier, if the applicant 

weren’t the city, we’d be sitting here asking this of the applicant. In 1952, supposedly the 

Kroh brothers proposed and City Council approved the special section of land that is on 

the far northern portion of the property. Is there a scenario where that border could be 

left, the middle two lots lines could be removed, and the lot line that, at the moment, is to 

the north of 9619 could be moved to a point that would be similar to the point to the one 

that is drawn to the north? This would give a buffer zone on the far southern side like the 

people have on the far northern side and thus establishes one significant lot in the middle 

that is large enough to accommodate everything the city does but also continues to 

provide the buffer that they have to the north and could have to the south? Was that a 

possible option and somehow decided against? 

 

Mr. Coleman:  I think the city’s intent is that this is a clean slate for the Fire Station 

development. It’s why we didn’t leave the cell tower there. Its lease was not renewed. 

That why we tore out the old Police Station, and there’s a possibility that the old City 

Hall might be moved. The old Fire Station might not be there, either. My understanding 

is the intent of this is just to remove the internal lot lines so we have a clean slate for 

development of this property. That would be a normal process for any developer. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  Thank you, Mr. Coleman. We’ll move on to a discussion of the 

application to re-plat the five lots located south of 96th Street and east of Lee Boulevard. 

 

Comm. Coleman:  I’d like to echo Mr. Coleman’s comments that this is the first step to 

creating the plan in order to get the five plots together so a proper plan can be done for 

the site. From my personal experience before joining the Planning Commission, I was on 

the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board for three years. I know that this tract of land 

has had the city’s eye for a number of years to have a replacement for the Fire Station, as 

well as a park. That information is five-plus years ago. I think that’s probably still the 

intent. The reason for that is North Leawood does not have a lot of parks, unlike Central 

or South Leawood. Anytime there is an opportunity to have open space in the north part 

of Leawood, the city wants to grab that opportunity. As far as I know, nothing has been 

decided, like if it will be more of a passive or active park. I know one of the concerns was 

parking or lack of parking for that site. This is the first step to creating a good plan for the 

site. The city will definitely engage the neighbors and the public. As far as I’m 

concerned, this is just the first step. 

 

Comm. Block:  I plan to vote in favor of this proposal. I think the clean slate is needed in 

order to properly develop this area. I think it will be too limiting with these property 

lines. I think input from the concerned residents is good. I know the city will take that 

into consideration, as I would if I were buying this and heard these comments about what 
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people wanted or didn’t want on this property. I think that’s going to go into the next step 

in the process. There were references in some of the comments about the amount of 

money that has already been spent on some of these parcels. I think it would be wasted 

money if multiple plans had to be drawn up to try to fit in these parcels. I think the LDO 

that we have to work within for any development in the city requires a lot of landscaping 

and berming, especially in these public areas. I think there’s a school on 103rd that we 

considered not too long ago that raised concern about traffic lights and neighboring 

properties. We’ve dealt with tree easements or buffer zones between that and Ironhorse 

Park. I’m hopeful the city will take to heart all of these comments into their next steps in 

the process, and we’ll see a plan presented to us in the future that will alleviate those 

concerns. I think this process needs to move forward so they can get a plan. 

 

Comm. Hoyt:   I just want to follow up on Commissioner Block’s statement. In hearing 

from the residents and so forth, a big concern, understandably, is the establishment of 

some sort of buffer area for the residents that will be directly affected. As one measure of 

reassurance, I don’t know that I’ve ever seen the city accept a plan that didn’t have very 

good landscape buffers as opposed to what was there already. That is a chronic issue, and 

the city takes that very seriously with a high priority on maintaining mature trees if 

possible and, in fact, generally improving landscape buffers. Obviously, there is not a 

plan, but I would be stunned if that weren’t a key consideration.  

 

Chairman Elkins:  Thank you. Other comments? If not, is there a motion? 

 

A motion to recommend approval of CASE 56-20 – LEAWOOD FIRE STATION 

#1 & PARK – Request for approval of a Preliminary Plat and Final Plat, located 

south of 96th Street and East of Lee Boulevard – was made by Coleman; seconded 

by Block. Motion carried with a unanimous roll-call vote of 8-0. For: McGurren, 

Peterson, Hoyt, Belzer, Hunter, Coleman, Block, and Stevens. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  Is there any other business to come before the Planning Commission? 

 

Comm. Coleman:  I have a question for staff with regard to the work session coming up 

in two weeks.  

 

Chairman Elkins:  I think we’ll discuss that once the meeting is adjourned. Any other 

business? 

 

A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Coleman; seconded by Block. Motion 

carried with a unanimous roll-call vote of 8-0. For: McGurren, Peterson, Hoyt, 

Belzer, Hunter, Coleman, Block, and Stevens. 

 

Chairman Elkins:  Thank you to the public for the participation this evening. 

 

MEETING ADJOURNED 
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